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A — — e e Amm e et g e m—

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: The Commission will
resume session.

Ve have Zfor considsration this morning the rasumption
of the hearing in 229 consolidated. |

I think we have specifieally for this moraing 196,
the Hopi claim.

MR, BOYDEN: The Hopis are ready.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: A1l other parties,

I take it, are represented or they should be here this morning.

You may proceed,

MR, BOYDEMN: May it plaase the Commission, I have

.afew matters some of which I would 1like to reiterate and
some clear wp at the begilnning.

¥When we first had a hearing I came back to hear
-Navajo witnesses, There was one rmap I used on cross examina-
tion which was then accepied in evidence as Exhibit 1, The
CGmmiséion already has one copy of that, I have prepared
that in a2 volume in order to kaep these all together,

Then Exhibit 2 was a2 map that was originally prepared
by the Navajo Tribe in the Healing v.Jones case; Map 440, in
that case. That was received in evidence ocut at the Grand
Canyon, at the hearing when Connissioner Scott was there.

Now, Mr, Littell and 1 made a stipulation with respect

to plants and with respect to certalin tesiimony of Mr. Cglion,,

Vs
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in Docket Numbexr 1926 and, being first duly sworn, was

examined and t estified as follows:

ﬂ? DIRECT EXAMINATION
By Hr. Boyden:

Q Will you state your name, please?

A Fred R, Tgegan.

Q Dr. Eggan, where do you reside?

A 1321 East 06th 3Btreet, Chicago, Illinois,

Q Will you give us an ouiline of your general biogiaphic-
al data, including your sducatiopmal training and experience
in the fileld of anthropology and ethnology with particular

h;; _ references to the Hopl people? -
A T was born in Seattle, Washington, in 1906.
I was educated at the University of Chicago where
I got a Bachelor's degree in 1927, a Haater'; degree in 1528,
‘and 2 Ph.D. in 1933 in the Field cf anthropology.
Soon aftey that I joined the faculty of the Univer-
8ity of Chicago as instructor in 1235. I was promoted to
Professor in 1948 vhen I became Cheirman of the Department.
I was Chairean until 1952 and siance this fall I have ¥gain
Y been Chairman of the Depertment of Anthropology.

‘My undergraduate and graduate work in anthropoiogy
wa® primarily in archacology and ethnology, social anthropology.

I did my Ph. D. thesis on the Ropl Indians and the

SRP001548
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1864 had rounded up the bulk of the ¥avajo who were placed
over on the Pecos River at Fort Sumner in captivity for four
yaears,

A considerable number of the Havajo eacaped, some
oi them to the north, northwest, in the ¥avajo mountain
rogion.Some of them down along the Little Colorado, some of
them want down south of the Mogollon Rim,

Q What year was that?
A That Qas*n the period between 1863 and 1868.

There were a number of attempts to Tround up the rest
of the NMavajo, various estimates as to how many were missing.
This period of Nevajo wars, of course, comes to a close with
the end of this period when the Treaty with he Favajo was

signed in 1868, and the Navajos were established on thelr

reservation,

Q Now, Docior, we have talked of the seven-villages
of Tusayan, as the Spanish called them, or the Mogui villmges,

Will you explzin to them the ndture or the use of

the lands by the Hopi le rly and
around the period of 18487 ‘ ‘

A You can say & little bit that will - useful sbout the
uge of their land and ther attitude toward land because they
have a somewhat different relationship to their land then

many of their neighboring groups. SRP001549
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and life are closely related. Plants and animals are zll,

from their standpoint, part of one great system.
As 1 mentioned, Hopi believe that their ancestors

originally came up from the underworld, their land of the

dead, their heaven.

At the mouth of the Little Colorado River where

it flows into the Grand Canyon here they met one of théir

chief deities, Masau’u, They made a compact with Masau’u

in which he gave them the land which he controlled if in turn
they would follow his teaching.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATEKINS: At this point, we would
1ike to take & ten minute recess. -
(Short recess.)

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: The Commission may
resume sessgsion, | |

By Mr., Boyden:

Q You were starting to tell us of the mature of the use
of Hopi landa particularly around the per:ldd of 1848. wWill
you oontinue?

A I was mentioning that the Hopi have a apecial relation-

ship to their land. Land is sacred, it is created by the

deities, planta and crops grow through the aid of the deities,

animals are put there by the gods for the men’s use.

SRP001550
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they have stariesabout almost every portion of it relating
to meterological events.

Their ceremonies drametize their gwnership of the
land and the relations of particular constituent clans to
different sections of the land.

Q' ¥ill you take just 2 mimute, since that is not in
the record, and tell the Commission what the chné are in
" just a general way? 1 kﬁow you have written avwkole book
on that but we want it in a genexal way.

A Let me start in with the larger unit, the v:l.lnge.

Hopi villages are now on the tops of the mesas,

They retreated there for protection againat the Spaniards

e

~ after the Pueblo Revolt of 1680 but formerly most of thes

3
i

' were at lower levels, in some cases even in the valleys.

The Hopli in recent years have come down from the
- mesas, Third Mesa, in the village of New Oraibi; :.Firat Mesa,

in the village of Polacea, “"+“ generally spreading out.

Moenkopi, an early vulﬁn_g_?, west of the Executive
Order Reservation, abandoned for asricd and used asfirming
land in the 187+a reestablished as a coloan of Oraibi.
Q  When you say abandoned, I notice you have used that
saveral times, do you mean abandoned as a dwelling?
: | As a permanent dwelling plrce. The people moved back to

SRP001551
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A Yes, and also herding thair cattle.
Now the Hopi are organized for urban living. Each
—— —————

main village is independent though they are organized in a

ceremonial federaticn.

R

The constituent units of each village are the

matrilineal clans, descent groups, in which people belong

Ty

to the particular clar that their mother belonged to and not

the c¢clan of thcis father, These clans are named after animals

and plants, so yov have Bear Clan, Spider Clan, Cora Clan,

and 80 on.

'I‘hﬂ clans are particularly important hecause they

coatrol segments of land, they comtrol blocks of hmos""ih" the

v:lllage, and thoy control the important ceremonies, rurn‘.‘&hug: '

_ the chiefs or priests to these cax'emnies.

The ceremonial organization has been going on for a
long timmand it is still " l1argely intact.

Ve can say more if you want about their ceresonial

organization, but that perbaps is enough.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKIRS: May I inguire, were

' they religious organizations?

THE WITNESS: The clans are not rel:l.g:l.éus organizations
as such. But they conti'ol their rolig:lqus organizations,

Cutting across this clan system you have a series of
societies, of religious societies, the .membership of which

SRP001552
comes from generalllylthe whole range of clans. But the control,
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the chief priests and the sacred paraphernzlia , the altars

and the ritwal are in the hands of a2 particular clb.n, S0 you

have a complicated sitwmtion in which the clans control the

ceremonial activities and ceremonies but they are actually
performed by a society whick includes members of a range of

clans, generally of the whole village,

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Did the Spaniards ever

really convert them to Christianity?

THE WITNESS: The Spaniards only convertddfhe people
at Awatovi, Well, the Sgacisrds partially converted them - - &
tc Christianity.

In the period from 1629 on, 2 large number were Inpﬂ.ued. .

How wuch religlous instruction they got from the pr:l.elta

WL Lol 3 B

we don't have any detailed record of but as the priests put

pressure won them to give up their old wvay of life, to give

up their own ceremonies and their own bteliefs, they revolted -

AP I

againet them and thereafter they didn’t practice” Christianity.

T
A

oty

L i

4

Even today theve are relatively few Christians.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Among the Hopi?

THE WITNESS: Among the Hopi.

COMMISSIORER SCOIT: I recall one of the Hopi witnesses
when he was being cross-sxamined last fall at the Grand
Canyon, as to whether he knew certain Mavajos, and they went

through about twenty-four or twenty-five, they finally came

to one and he =aid "VYes, I remember, his name was Charlle®-.
Y S RPOQ
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he met him at Christian Endeavor.

Would that indicate he wae going to a modern type -
of church, I mean the type we are thiaking about?
TRE WITNESS: That might be possible. He might
have been a Hopl living in Winslow or Flagstaff, I am not sure;

there are some Christians there but the number is actually
relatively small.

There is 2 mincrity of Christians today on the Hopl
Reservation.

If we turn briefly to subsistence activities, Hopl

subsistence today and in the last century has been primarily

Y

raising.

,._.........——-—*'—‘ N

But hunti.ng and gathering of wild plants is stﬂ.l

vtr 4

practiced nnd in the past wheonever there haa been a famine -

e e

condltion or drought, it has become at that time even more

important, Everybody, every Hopi, until very recently, -has

beer 1 farmer, Corn, beans and squash are grown and agriculture

———

T in mbie b R
Do a7 s b anhR e i YR BRI

et

-
in this country depends essentially upon rainfall,irrigation

R

and flood water irrigation.

As the rains occur up on the wmesas, the water runs

i
PR R

down the waahes ,shere it spreads out is one of the favorite

areas for planting.

8o thst agriculiure can oaly be carried out whers
either there are sandy areas which hold a limited amount of

rajinfull because the average rainfall here is orly around ten

SRP001554
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or twelve luches a year, or vhers wash concentrations spread
—_ flood waters, sitorm vaters, over particular aress,
. CHIEF COYMISSIONER WATKINS: Do they have any reservoirs
or did they make reservoirs in the early days?
THE WITNESS: They used respyvolrs only to 2 limited
extent ,below some of the springs they made terrace gardens
and grew some vegetables, but there iz & limited amount
of vater rvalilable from these springs.
Host of the water from the springs went for drianking

purposes and only secondarily could they use it for irrigation.

D

Out in the valleys, before modern times, they made

sual) check dame and thinge like thatjbut they were not anywhere

B RS A CB AR

ngr-the modern scale of ifrimtion. They had really no
irrigation from streamse, there were no running streams in

their territory.

So, while they _knew of irrigation techniques and

practiced them with regard to the overflow from springs, they

still wore not able to irrigate large areas in modern :taéh:lon.

AT A

Now, agriculture wvas extended particularly in the

eI LR

‘Moenkopi area, in Moenkopi Wash you did have a semi-permanent
J . stream and there was & good deal, there was an extensive usa
of that avea.
In the eprings to the south, in the southern part

of the reservation, in the Wero washes, in the Jeddito Valley

that we mentioned, 2rd so on, but the best lands for agrigp’ture

V4
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- possibly a few wild berries, Peaches were planted in orchards,

' form a major portion of subsistence.

7138

were around the villages thomselves. They were owned, as

. we mentioned, by these matrilineal clans, and each clan held

their partié.ular set of lands in trust for their descendants.
The major ceremonies are centered around the growth
of corn and other crops and are particularly concerned with
rain.
By HMr., Boyden:
Q How about fruit?

A Fruit came in only with the Spaniards, except

both on top of the mesas and along the sides and there are

s8till quite a few peach orchards in this area. That did not

- e —

H
b
g
3
i
=

Cattle and sheep as well as horses came and burros

came in with the Spaniarda, particularly after 1600. The Hopl

e ———e

got sheep during the mission period, i

At -Awatovi therxe in the ruins, in the house fills,
there woere nmumerous sheep bones and the sheep were well adapted
to this semi~desert area.

To bagin with they wers herded away from the fields

and the corrals were built at some distance.

h Periodically, as a temlt—;mm from neighboring
groups, they had to be brought back to the vicinity of the
viliages every night, so that you had at various times in

their history, in the last hundred years, a different pattern

SRP001556
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of grazing. But even today or in the recent past, permanent
= sheep camps at some distance from the villages have been

built and Hopl reside contimuougly thexra or groups of Hop:l..

collaborate in taking their turns in heirding sheep.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: At this poiant, lLoctor,
I would like to ask you a question.

You talk about hexrding the sheep some distance away
from the mesap. As a matter of fact, the mesas were not
adapted very much to the growing of any crops of any kind,
were they?

THE WITNESS: The tops of the mesas are used
particularly to grow beans, There are bean fields on the 7
tops of the mesas, fruit orchards, psaches. Sheep can be
herded on top of the mesasz but there is not too much room.

Most of it is out in the washes, ié: the valleys,

o SO

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: I only saw two or three

of the pueblos in that arsa hut I observed that they were

very small, as far as area is concerned, compared to the area
around then.

THE WITNESS: That is true, ) am thinking of the area

) up north, up behind them, north, which 1s 2 sort of continuous
mean, hlack mesa, a large area,

Itig true most of the herding is on the flat lands

Cattle were allowed to range mors widely. They Jyexe

. e - ’7 ’ - h A\Hr:.‘.
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turned loose, particularly i- the western areas, west of
Oraibi and scuth of Moenkepi, and were periodiczlly rounded
N up. |
We mentioned Escal#nte’s account of seeing them out
there in the 1770°s, Cattle almost vanished from the Hopi
area in the nineteenth century. In the 1880°s, you began
again to get herds of cattle, particularly in Third Mesa and
Second Mesa,
KR, ROCHOW: Did you say the 1880°s?
THE WITNESS: They were reported in the 1770's by
Escalénte. In the 1890's there was a revival of cattle
running, ownership by Hopi.

Cattle could not be kept near or were not kept near

the village partly because they competed with the Hopi for the

limited amount of water there so that they had to range

further away in order to haw sources of water,

—

The surplus horses were likewise turned loose anﬁ
periodically rounded up. Even as late as the early 1930's
Athm were herds of horses west of Oraibi. Horses however
never became an integral part of Hopi life, possibly again
because they compoted with sheep who were important as

- sources of food and subsistence, and also as sources of wool.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Didn't they eat the

horses, too, the horse meat as well as the sheep?

THE WITNESS: Yes, on occasion, though they naver
SRP001558
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really raised them for that purposae.

Hunting, which is now limited mainly to rabbits
and small game, was once nuch more extensive and much more
irportant,

By Mr, Boyden:

Q Give us an idea what that was in 1348 2apd prior
thereto,

A 0f the bunting?

Q Yes,

A In the last century, or eveam earlier, one of the
important animels they bunted was the mountain sheep which
was quite mmerous around the cliffs of the Colorado Eiver
and the L:l.ttle. Colorado. |

q' Can you tell us on Exhibit A which areas you are
talking about there?

A This region along here.

Q  Will you tell us, Doctor, where that region is?

A It is the region just to the north and south of
Desort Viewpoint 1+he present Grand Canyon.

Q That is in the pink or west district we are talking
about?

A In the west district.

Q Now, the Little Colorado, where the mountain sheep
were, extended how far along the Little Coloradc?

A Down to the area of Cameron; beyond that it is w15

ah
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open, antelope were also taken in a number of areas. Antelope
were common along the Little Colorado River, the .edge of the
blue and red to the socuthwest, and were also taken on Black
Mesa and on Awatovi Mesa one of whose names was Antelope Mesa.
Antelope were generally huntédiin terms of comsmuaal
hunts with converging corrals built and there were counts
of theily being taken in fairly . large numbers.
Deer were normally hunted individuzlly --
Q Doctor, before you leave that, did the Hopi Indians
construct and use antelope traps or antelope corrals?
A Yes, they did. in fact, there are remains of some
Just on First Mesa, itself, just north of The Gap.

Deer were hunted individually, mainly in the more

forested areas of Black Mesa.

Y Rabbits in early timee were an important souce of
food and today still are. They are still hunted communally

several timee a year in different locations.

The Hopi. systematically move their rabbit.:hunts around

from one area to another, leaving areas to rejuvemate.
Q What areas did they use in 1848 for that purpcse?
A We have no specific documentary account of any rabbit
hunt,
t eas tha
1 would }nter they used the same ar, 8 t they use

today. They go out severzl miles from the village in different

directions, depending on where rabbits have been noted to egeu®so
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in enough nmumbers to make it worth while to round ihem up.

Q Now, did they also individually hunt them when
they would go out to shrines, and so forth, at great distances?

A Yes, that was always dope, I am sure, and is still
done today as they go out.

At the times I have been there, I have seen them
bring in one or two rabbits, iadividuals bringing in ome or
two rabbits.gery frequently.

Q Dootor, from the time the Spaniards came until the
end of the Maxican period and the beginning of the American
period, are there not documentary accounts of trading of -
venison and antelope and rabbits to the peopie who came in
there?

A I am not sure that there was any trading of rabbits.
The others are mentioned. Rabbits were merely traded in
terms of rabbit skin blankets which I assume are the results
of rabbits.

Q In givimg the Spaniards gifts when they cams in-
as tokens of friendship, included among those things were
the bags of the hunt, wore there pot?

A That is right, venison, particularly they mentionod
cotton blapkets, woven from cotton.

I did not mention cotton but cotton comes in hero

as an important agricultural plant.

The Hopi had developed a speclal varlety of caki@nes:
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which would grow in this relatively cool area amd in this
region cotton was grown primarily in the Moenkopi Wash area.

It wou1+ot grow in the higher altitudes of the
Hopi Mesa, its bush was characteristically cultivated
farther west in lower and warmer, slightly loﬁér and there-
bre warmer areas.

Espfjo reports getting somewhere between 1500 and
2000 cotton blankets as gifts .:I;n 1582. So that cottom has
a long history here,if we didn't know archeologically ve
wuld know from this they nmade an extemded use of cotton.

CHIZF COMMISSIGNER WATKINS: Is that a notive plant?

THE VITNESS: This is a native American plant
vhioch had been domst:lc_ated and which in this area through
cultivation became very highly specialized.

It has been of great interest to the peneticist
and agricultural experts for that reason.

By Mr. Boyden:

Q I take it from what you say, from the tine the
Spaniards came and durinz that period up to the American
period, the cotton was raised largely out west towanrds
Hoenkopi?

A Moenkopi Volley was the major area where cotton
was prown. It was grown there continuously up to the time
that the trading post came in and supplied a more convenient

form of cotton. Tven then 1t was continucd on for cecremonial
SRP001562




7195

purposds until relatively recently since in their use of
cotton string for ceremonies they reed cotton that they
raise themselves.

@  Now, Doctor, do the doclmentd’plso, durir the
Spanish period, Mexican period and the sarly American period,
shoy evidences of considerable trade of the Hopis with the’
surrounding Indians and commnities? _

A Yes. Alwmost cverybody vho stayed there very long
remarked upon the-Eopi as 8 center for trade. ;n fact,‘i
think it was Escalante who said they were masters of trade
for this whole aroa.

Thelr woven garrents were traded pgrticularly to
the Rio Grande area, and they still are today. Almost all
of the accounts =- well, bis account, Father Garces® account,
of Havasupal menticns Hopl traders there who guided him or
showed him the way to Oraibi.

In fact, trade intbis wholo area with all of the
neighboring groups has always been important and goes on
continually,

Thore are even today trading delegations that come
from Rio Grande, Santo Doéingo, other villages, from Zuni, from
Navajo.

Q Then during the period of the Spanish, the Mexican,
and the early American preriods, the trails were of consilderable

importance, were they pot, through that country?
' SRP001563
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A Yes.

Q As their transportation methods?

A There were trails in almost 211 directioms which
wore well known by the Hopl and by their neighbors and the
Hopi were utilized as guides,in many cases as they were when
Coronado came in,to these other regioms.

Q@  VWhen you say"to the other regions,"™ what regions
did they use the Hopis as guides to?

A They used them as guides fo, as I mentioned, the
Grand Canyon. They used them as guides to the Havasupai
country to the west. They did not need them as guides %o
Zuni because most of the expe@itions came through Zuni. But,
generally, Hopi and Zuni relationships were duita close,

There wore well kmown trails east to.the'thaJo:aten.
Iﬁ 1850, Calhoun reports a delegation of Hopi
coning all the way to Santa Fe. They krew the Rio Grande'
pueblos even earlier tham that but that is the first record
during the American period.
There were trading trails to the southern Puriate,
on the berders of the Colorado River.
There wore trails up into the Kayenta country and

relations with the Utes during this pericd were mainly

of warfare.

I don't remember any specific accounts of trading

with them although I am sure they did.

SRP001564
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CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATRINS: Did they have any
vehicles in these eearly days? 7

THE WITNESS: No, they did al® of this on foot.
In fact, even after horses came in, they'preferred in wost
cases to go on foot. )

The Hopli actually trained themselves in thése early
days by teaching the boys particularly to run long distances
and to go with as 1ittle water as possible.

When they went on tralls up through desert country
they wuld take bottles of water along, they would bury them at
partioular pnlaces so they ‘woulgahave water on their way ba#k
if they went through areas that didn't bave enough water holes.

But they could go across the desexrt or seni-désertn
oountry on foot probably faster than they cuﬁld o7 duaé aé“ 
fast as they could with horses. o
| CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Did the Spaniards bring
any vehicles in with them?

THE WITNESS: The Spaniards brought no vehicles
into this country. They came in with pack trains.

One thing they did bring in that the Hopi adopted
wvas the burro. There still are burros around:but that
bacame the pﬁok aninal and the Hopi also ride them occasional-
ly. But no wheéled vehicles came in.

1 think the wheel vehicles got into this area

11 the 1890's.
probably nat unt SRP001565
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MR, LITTELL: 1ir., Boyden, you asked a question
in xoforence to the Spanish, Nezlcan and early American
periods. Mr. Watkins refers to the eaxly Spanish period
and the witness referred to the early period.

I don't know what he is talking about with respect
tp his answer.

To what perlod does this comment you have made
apply? |

K THE WITHESS: About wheeled vehicles?

¥MR. LITTELL: Yes, and then the one behind that,
about the training and rvnning long distances and the guides
prefexring to go on foot.

THE WITNESS: I think the training and running long
distances has gone on since tha beginning of Hopi history
here.

MR, LITTELL: I mean the portiom about serving as
guides over these various trails? |

THE WITNESS: That goes back, +that documentary
evidence for that goes back only to the Spanish period. Ve
don®t have any araheqlogioal evidence of gulding but we do have
archaeological evidence of a great deal of tzade, trade
sunning all the way over to the ocean and to the gulf, indirect-
1y at least, in that sea shells of various kinxls were found

in the ' ppre- Spanish ruins at Awatovi and elsevhere, in fact

evidence of turquoise from the Rio Grande reglon and different
SRP001566
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atyles of pottery made ?lsawhase aze found buried both
in pre-Spanish and post-Spanish -- pre-Spanish graves which

indicate to the archnoologis:i the trade with the southern

area.,

MR. LITTELL: That is pre-Spenish and Spanish period?

THE WITNESS: I an talking about the arahaaoiogical
avidence of the pre-Spanish periad.

We found also at Awatovi the trade stlllFontinued
up until the abundonment of Awatovi in 1700.
By M¥r. Boyden:

Q Did th trading period continue into the American
period?

A It st;ll is going on today.
CHIEF COMMISSIGNER WATKINS: You did not answer the
other question directly. In thke Amsrican period -~
By Mr. Boyden: |
Q 1848, for example?
A Yes, it went on then and 1t still is go:tn:rg on today.
Q In 1848, was 1t then an impoxrtant part of their
econony?
A It wvasn®t an essential part.of their ecomomy but
it was an important part of thelr economy. 1t was the way

in which they got coremonial goods, particularly coertain kinds

of feathers, which came up from the south, parrot feathers, ...

which were quito important in their religious rituals.
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It was a way in which they got tuvqouise which did
not ocour locally.

It was a way in which they got »éd ochre which they
used for body paint and which camo ffom a particular site
in cataract Canyon in the Havasupal territory.

These, plus shells of various kiﬁds which were used
in their dances and on their altars,all came in this tradq
and that trade has been continuous fhrough the oarly American
period and, as I say, right up to the present.

Q Now, was the hunting of antelope and mountain goat
and‘iabbits'an esgsential part of thoilr economy in the year
1848 and priox thereto?

A  Yes. It was more important then than it is now.

~ In the first place, at that t;aé there was consider-
ably more game in this area than there is today. |

From the archaeélﬁgicnl exoavations numerous bones
of these animals are ‘found. |

Also, in the ceremonies, it 1s these animals in
mapy cases who are, portions of these animals® hooves or
horns, and so forth, are used as ;n important part of their
ceremonial apparatus.

Q That brings me to the questiapf turtles. Are
they.also an importantZ%hrt of thelr ceremonies?

A Yos, turtles, even foxes, their ceremonial custume

consists always almost of a fox skin which is draped down the
SRP001568
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back.

These foxzen have to be ceremonially killed. They
a:abxapped in special aveas down toward the Little Colorado
River.

They also utilize turtles as rattles, combination
of a turlle shell and antelope hooves makes tho basic rattle
that they strap on to the back of their leg in their ceremonial
kachina dances.

Qe Those turtles were gathered whe:e?

A They came primarily from the Little Colorads River.

Q That would be down to the south or blue area in
Exhibit A?

A Along the socuth edge of the blue area and along
the southwest edge of the red area.

Hore important even than these two animals was the
coramoninl tyepping of eagles, which occurred in a wide
variety of places.

Eagles were takon from their mests as young, though
the Hopl were careful td leave enough eagles, enough young
to maintain the eagle population. | |

Thoy were raised by the Hopi ritually, they were fed,
treeted almost as members of the family. They were ritually
then, in June or early July, early or middle July, they were

ritually killed, their feathors were taken and the eagles were

SRP001569
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These foathers were usad not omly for their cogtumes
but also as the main modium by which prayers were sent to the
various gods. .

A prayer atici: was an integral part of every Hopi

request and these require particular eagle feathers as well
as turtle shelis.

@ what 15 a paho?

A A paho is simply a prayer stick, usually two

1little willmmenting a male and another a
fomale. They are tied together. Various wild plants are
sometimes put with them, a little bit of cornmeal, in a corn
husk, a little bit of honey and a wrapping of cottom thread
with porhaps an eagle feather tied to it.
Q@  Did each of these things tied in a bundle have
a épec:lf:lc significance in the form of prayer?
A Ag a symbolization of this particular purpose,

of the importance of these particular elements. |

CHICF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: You mentioned a few
ninutes ago something about parrot feathers were especinlly
desirable. Parrots were mot mative to this area, wore thoy?

THE WITNE38: NKo,they wore not,sir.

CHIEF CCMMISSIONER WATKINS: How far away would
they have to go to get parrot feathers?

| PR WITNESS: In Southerp Arizone, in the warmer

degerl country to the south, you have smaller parrots. SRPO0T5TO
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The large macaw feathers apparently came up in
trade from the Hexiéan border but they secmed to be passed
from one group to another.

The details of that, maybe Al Schroeder knows nmore
about that than I do, but they did come in in trade and they
8till use them. |

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Did they have any
special sipgnificance, I mean the parrot feathers aspect.

THE WITNESS: In the early Spanish accounts for
Zuni, you do have some accounts of parrots or macaws being
kept in cages, if I remember correctly. '

With regard to the Hopi, I think in this case it

' was largely their spectactular plumage that attracted thenm,

possibly their reputed ability to talk, I don®t know.

There 18 a Parrot Clan which is, in their belief,
thought to be relaysd to parrots. You have a great number
of myths. But actually in regard to them they didn't live
in their territory, they may have lived in the territory of
some of tﬁe:l.r ancestors.,

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATEINS: I guess this is e good
place to take our noon recess.

Ve will take our noon recess until 1:30.

MR. SONOBKY: Bofore we take the recess, could I

make a correction on the resord?

As you suspected, with the amount 0f exhibits szPOO1571
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B AFTERNOON SESSION
(The hearing roconvened at 1:30 p.m.,

“ / Chief Commissioner Watkins presiding.)

.....

PRESENT'
ARTHUR V. WATKINS, Chiof Commissioner.

7 T. HARCLD SCOIT, Associate Commissioner.
APPEARANCES :
On bebhnlf of tho petitiomer in Docket No. 229:

Nerman M. Littell, Esquire,
1824-26 Jefferson Place, Northwest,
Washington, D. C. '

On behalf of the petitioner in Docket No. 196:

Jchn S. Boyden, Esquire,
351 South State Stireet,
Salt Lake City, Utah.

i

On behalf of the defendant:

Walter A. Rochow, Esquire,
Attorney, Lands Division,
. Department of Justice,
VWashington, D. C,.
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MR, BOYDEN: Yes, they are vary legible when
you get close to them.

By iir. Boyden:

Q Will you proceed, Dr. Eggan?
A We were talking before about shrines and particular-
1y about eagle shrines.

We were talking about theo ceremonial gathering
of eagles,

& descrihed briefly how they were caught and raised -
and for what purposes they were used.

Eagle hunting areas are owned by clans and associated
with these clamns, assooclated with these hunting territoriles,
are a sories of shrines. So that each village and each clan
has 5 number of these shrines which they periodically visit, ‘
nét every year, they skip around from one to another because
this is a sort of ceremonial farming of eagles by which _the |
population was not depleted emough so that they did not continue
t0o reproduce and to maintain thomselves.

This is one of the most iuportant ﬁo;::l. oerenon!.al'
activities., It has been carriod down, as we oan tell from
the archaeological record, from pre-Spanish times and it
is still being carried on very actively to the prosent time.

These maps, one of them particularly perhaps I might
meption now, Map Rumber 68, or Hopl Exhibit Number 68, shows

the extent of theso oagle shrines as they have been put SRPOO1573
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togother by the Her Indlans thomselves.

I understand that another witmess will document
these further.

But let me just point out that here is the Little
Colorado River, a series of these shrines runs down south
of the Colorado River through Clenr Creek Cenyon, through
Canyon Diablo, through Chevalon Creek, azd through a series
of trihﬁtaries running into the Little Colorado itself.

| They run along the Little Colorado and the Large

Colorado. They run gll the way up here heyond PFair Mnuntain;
They run down here to Black Mesa on hoth sides and they run
down to the eofgtern wargins and beyond the present reserva-
flon period. |

There are in here a very large ﬁumher of such
shrines, not only in the area around the villages but in
the cliffs and valleys on all sides of the prosent Hopi reser-
veation.

CHIRF COMMISSIONER VATEINS: How do you scoount
for so many of them? *

TEE VITHESS: Y acoount for so many of them partly
because eagles are not very numexcus and partly because
there are & large number of Hopi clans.

- Thore are roughly something like fifty differont

Hopi clans, and in some crmes these are found in several
SRP001574
0of the villages.
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| In most cases, these are found in several of the
villages. Each village has in general its own section from
which they gathered eagles ;o that this is an extemnsive,
it 1= not only intensive as far as the clan is concerned,but
each clan has several sections from whioh they gathered young
eagles,
By Mr. Boyden:

Q Doctor, in comnection with that questiomn your

further answer also aéplies, doeg it not, that they do not

try to depopulate them, they move from one place to anothex

_to be sure that the eagles are not?exterminated?

A Yes, they are very careful about that. They are
very careful not to waste any feathers.
As I mentioned earlier, they have ritual ways of
killing eagles. They have to smother them in a cexrtaln way.
The Hopi believe that 1f they are treated in this
ritual manner, they will be reborn again and come back into
the eagle population. |
On the othex hand, if they are not treated with
the pr&per respect, why, they won't come back,
| Kow, I want to go on and say a little bit about
the .gathoring of wild plants which,in the past hundred
years and particularly before trading posts,was a much more
important activity than it is today.

The Hopl, &8s you can see from Exhibit Fumber 3,
SRP001575
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know a very large number of wild plants by name. They have
definite uses for the majority of them. They know where they
oen be found and they gathered them frqm a very wide territory.
Somo of thoese are used for food. Greens in fhe spring;

erass seeds in timo of famine; pinon muts,during the periodic
heavy harvests of pinom nuts, are found in the pinon areas..

Q Vhere are the piion areas?

A Pifion trees grow generally at higher elevations,
5500 feet and up. The principal area from which the pinon
muts are gathered in this region is in the fack HLBR aren
which runs through this general region here.

Q Will you just indicate what that regian is. for- .
the record?

A It 15 the region in the nortbeast corner of the
ﬁlncutive Order Reservation and perhaps on the north and east
marging as well.’

Tﬁey also gathered pifions at other places in the
eastern region and occasionally in the western area. |

Pifion muts, wild potatoes, roots of various kinds
were .gathered. Pigweed, mustard, a varigty of such hlants
were gathered for food.

Partioularly this was true in the spring, if there
bad been drought or a bad harvest, in this hunger period
before other foods were available, wild plants of various

kinds were gathered in considerable number. SRP001576
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Q Hu{important were wild plants in the year, say,
18487
A Considerably more important than they are today.
Aotually, in their rituals, you have wild plants, in their
rituals and in their myths you found wild plants pléying a
very important role.
| Ffom the accounts of the older Hopis during‘famine

-periods you learned thét knowing where these plants were and
gathering them might make the difference between survival
‘and non-survival.

So that wild plants,in my opinion, were much more
important in the past than they are at present. |

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: You mentioned wild
potatoes, I thought, a moment ago.

THE WITNESS: Yes, little roots. They are about
this big., They are gathered frﬁm variocus of the flats.
They were eaten, 1nt9rest1n§ly enough, with a sort of olay to
give them a flavor. Théy gathered a particular kind of olay
whach they uix;d with it. This was sometimes dome communally,
a fow would go out and dig-at particular spots. They are not
1ike ouf potatoes.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATXIFS: Are they the samo

variety?
THEE WITNESS: No, it is a smnll root which was

given the name "wild potato."
SRP001577
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- COMMISS IONER SCOTT:I Is it the same as the Kamas?

THE WITNESS: No, the Bamas are up furthér in the
QLrthwest. I think that is a sort of 11iily type bulbh.

They are not as hig or as good. These are quite small,

The Hopl also gathered food plants or gathered
plants for madicinal purpoées.

Juniper berries, sage brush made into teas, globe
mallow, and a whole series of others.

I think Dr. Whiting has listed something like a
hundred madicinal plapts which you can find in this list which
were known and which are .utilized for illresses of one kind
or another.

They used plants for dyeing leather, particularlj
the mountain mahogany which they got at higher altitudes,

Plants were used for a wide variety of éeranonies.
Wild -tobacco was gathered and smoked ceremonially. Cotton
wood roots were gathered on the Little Colorado River and used
for making kachina dances and for portions or parts of altars.
Pine and fir branches were gathered cexsmonially for evory
dapnce and for every ceremony, usually they went north of some
shrines at the top of Black Mesa. ‘

On a fow occasions they might go as far as the Sun
Francisco mountains.

Agave, which is pretty much the same as mescal,
SRP001578
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| Havasupai. Reeds ware gathered for use for cercumonial
purposes and willows along the streams fo_r prayer sticks,
Their weapoﬁs and tools were made out of mountain
mahpgany and in other ceses out of oak, thruwiqg sticks were
made out of oak,
Various k:l.ndé of plants were pathered for basketry,
both on the resezvation itself and on surrounding azeas.
i have ‘beenm with Hopi over inm the Ch:l.nle' a’z-e;‘s
gathering sivahpi and basketry. !
| By Mr. Boyden:

Q@  Now, in 1848 were wild plants an important and

an essential part of the Hopl economy?

A In my opinion they were, sir. I don'_t _j:'h:lnk the

Hopi would have survived in the numbers they have today if

they had not mpde an extensive M wild plani_;s.

--'—-—__ e

Earlier than that, you go back far enough, this
was all they depended upom. Their whole subsistence at one
tiwe was dependent on wild plants plus hunting.

Q Does the éather:lng of thege plants include all the
areas that are colored including also the Executive Order
Reservation as set forth in Exhibit A?

A Tes, it does. They gathered plants from as far

o ———
———

away as Grand Canyon, along the Little Colorado, up in the

north, Black Mesa and beyond, and in the eastern area as well,

—

Another important problem is fuel. Azxchaeologis$soiso
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looking at the southwesternm region have come to the
conclusion thai'the exhaustion of fuel supplies in the
vicinity was an important factor in many of the miprationms.
Wood in the form lhere of pfHon or juniper was
widely used both for cooking and in the winter for heating.
Black Mesa, this wooded area to the noxrth and
noitheast, was the major source of wcod beyond the villages

themselves.

Coal was actually used in this area, too, in pre-
historic times.
The archaeclogists have found from around 1300
up to just befoye the Spanish period that coal was extengivoly
used and it was used not mly for baking pottery but as a
means of heating their houscs and cooking and in the kivas
themselves. |
We don't know why they gave it up. Perhaps a few
, of them got asphyxiated because the coal was not of too-  good
aquality but thore was a period in there when thore was quite

extensive uge of coal, at least in the Awatovi area.

Minerals were also gathered for ceremonial purposes.

Weo montioned the red ocher which was traded from
the Havasupal. Other earths were gathered on pilgrimages to
the Grand Canyon.

Q Doctor, before you leave the red ocher, since it is
SRP001580
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Spanish thought was the meroury possibility?

A  This was, or at least the presence of red ocher

- in the Hopi villages,:.-excited the interest of the Spaniards.

It was a sort of heavy grease compound. They thought it might
be cinnabar or ﬁercury cenmpound . They actuzliy bought, I
think, a burro load or two in the Hopi country, and sent it
off for assay.
They als§ made searches for.the mines further west.
It turned out that it was not mercury but probably
an oxide of some kind.

Q Was there quite a bit of trade in this material
to people away from the Hopi country?

A This was the major contribution or a ma jor contri-
bution of the Havasupal to the tradiné complex. They traded
it to the Hopi and the Hopi, in turn, traded it to other
groupé.

¥R. LITTELL: Hay we again ask what period you
are talking about now?

MR. BOYDEN: We are talking about the Spanish period
at the moment,

THE WITNESB: But that traﬁe went on later. I haven't
actunlly seen any myself in the twentieth century.

By lr. Boyden:

Q Was this trading going on in the period in which

we aro intereosted, in 18487 _ SRP001581
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A  Yes, particularly in the Moonkopl area and
Oraibli where the Hhvasupgi came particularly to trade.

I mentioned that other earths weore gathered from
the Grand Canyon, the Little Colorado Canyon, from the
Painted Deaerf, and used on ceremonial oocaaions;

And salt, which was both a condiment and a sacred
object, cams primarily from the mouth of the Little Colorado
‘and secondarily fraﬁ down Zunl Salt Lake.

Expeditions went almost every year, oxr every year.
It was a rather danperous journey, not by way of enemies

but because they had to be down into the Canyon over ropes

)

(.

and particularly because it was such a highly,éacred area.
Clay was also gathered for pottery but mainly in
tho vicinity of ?he Mesas.

- Grindstones for making cornmeal came fromthe volcanic
areas in the Hopi-Ute country at the southern end of the
Executive Order Reservation and beyond.

‘ @  And boyond would take theminto the avea indicated
as purple ;n Exhibit A, is that correct?

g L A  That is correct.

L - The Hopi Buttes -~
MR, LITTELL: Will you be kind enough to read the
answer to that question? I am afraid I got it mixed up a

bit.

(The question was read by the reporter.) SRP001582
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THE WITNESS 3 The Hopl Buttes are listed in this
nap, this general.area.
MR. LITTELL: Pointing to an area immedlately
south, southeast quarter, is tﬁat correct?
| MR. BOYDEN: And in the southb purple. area.
MR. LITIELL: He confimed it to that township ?
immediately scuth of the southeast quarter, is that correct?
THE WITHRESS: The Hopi 1 mentioﬁed weie the Hopl
Buttes listed on this map.
Actunlly, they extend down to the Lower Colorado.
By uga Boyden:
Q‘ The place to which you have pointed at this moment
has Bopi Buttes right on it, does it not?
A That is right.
Q You have indicated in the trips that they made
for religious purposes to the various shrimes, for gathering
also, and so forth, that on those they did individual hunting.
Did they also gather plants on those occasions
when they wohld go out?
A Certainly they would, whether they went on a
trading trip,or wvhether thay' .went to hunt eagles,
or to a shrine, they would hunt any animals that they came
across. They would pather plants, those near a shrine in

s great many cases had particular significance.

They made, in effect, a miltiple use of such

SRP001583
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trips.
I think they not only made multiple use but they
made & relative intensive use of their territory, both

on their own reservation and on the neighboring regions.

Sormo of these, for example, the long ocultivation
of cotton for ceremonial purposes and for olothing as well,
took place almoat entirely ocutside of the present Executive
Order Reservation.
| They made these trips quite frequently, aslmost
every year a particular group would gotoone or another of
these sots of shrines, and tboy have done this, as I say, for
long periods of tiwe and continue to do it today.
For certain ceremonies they even have to go farther,
For certain ceremonies, in the case of crises, they might
go as far as the shrines on the San Francisco mountains,
beyondl' the Little Colorado River, to various buttes, sacred
apots, to ruins such as those in Wupatki or Homolovi, along the
Little Colorado River.
Q Was that territory at one time regarded as Hopi
territory oxr their ancestorst?
A Yeon., Actually*lll of these spots are in aresas
that traditionmally they claim even though some of them are
in areas even outside this range here.

MR. LITTELL: To which area was that question

addressed? SRP001584
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MR. BOYDEN: He was talking about the San
Francisco lountains, Mr. Littell.
MR. LITTELL: Thatis the area you confined 1t to?
MR, BOYDEN: ke broadened it himself. But that
is the question I asked hinm.

THE WITHESS: The Hopl have shrines in the San -

-

Francisco l'lounta_:ln region, up the mountain itself,mset
c;;t;;; FF°mFEEME!!Eg_égg_gtﬁxgzigggﬁgthez“places-

o Thegse shrines represent thelr most - sacred places.
Some are common to - all, someo, 23 we have seen, are limited
to particular clans, particular villages, but they extend, as
Map Number 68 shows,_ eagle shrines not only well outside
Xhe Executive Order ieaemt:lan but some portions of the arena
colored onghis map,

By Mr. Boyden:

Q With reference to soms of thom extending to
particular villages, I draw your attention to  Plaintiff‘s
Hopl Exhibit 66.

Will you explain to the Commissicnwhat that 1s?
It is in the foldex.

A 66 represents the traditional cliaim of the Second

Mesa viliages, which was sent in some time ago.
CHIEF COMMISSONER WATKINS: iIs that 667
MR, BOYDEN: Yes, 66.

THE WITNESS: You have here drawn the traditional
SRP001585
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claim of tho Hopi Indians of Second Wesa plus the partiolar
eagle slir:l.nes that go‘ws.'i:}z the Secord Hesa villages, mainly
to the south and to the east, with the Littlecoluedé River
rnnniﬁé along here, extending from Williams lountain down to
Sadona WoodruffButte.

MR.RCCHOW: That ontline in black, does that
relate to the Second Hosa area?

THE WYITNESS: That is the .arxea that somov timo in
the past the Second Hosa poople heve claimed, I think about
1830 op 32,

When was that gent in?

MR, BOYDEN: I will look at it,

THE WITNESS: Things go into the Archives pretty
fagt these days.

MR. BOYDEN: I will have to check that up a 1little
Wt later. I can?t :E_i.nd it immediately on the map. It was
the cialm of the shrime area of the Second Mesa. It is an
Archive's map. That ia the reason I am not so familiaxr with
it. Vo oan check it up a 1littie bit later.

By Ur. Boyden:

Q At any rate, this illustrates your point that the
differont olans in different villages hed = different set
of ithese shrines that thoy used.

A Thatiis true.
Q That is still ¢true today, is it not?

SRP001586
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A That 1s true today, yes.

Q Now, I call your attention to Plaintiff’s Exhibit |
89, which refors to Hopil shrines other than the eagle shrines.
Vhat 1s the nature of those shrines? I notice them scattered
all over the map here.

A Some of those ere shrines owned by particular secret
socletles and are comnected with the cereronies which they
perfo:;p:.

| Some of them are Ekachina shrines. Some.of them are
sh:r:lneﬁ relating to nﬁ:jor Hopi deity. These are not as
numroué but there is one down here at Woodruff Butte, for
example, there is some up here by Chambers, there is ome
Just southeast of Winslow. There are some over here near
Flagstaff. Possibly these are the ice cave ones.

There are cuite a few __;I.nth:l.s area Just northot
Cameron and there are some all the way up in lees Ferry,
Navajo Bridge region, and there are some over here beyond
the Little Colorado invhat is now the Jrand Canyon region.

The bulk of them, however, are in this regliom area,
as you can perhaps see.

Q@ Whem you say "this general area,"” will you indicate?

A These are tho Hopl Exeéut:l.ve Order Reservation and
its immediate margins, ﬁ'uba ¢ity region and the areas down
gouth- between the Exccutive Order Reservation and Little

Colorado River. SRP001587
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Q How, Doctor, before you leave that, may I call
your attention to Hopi Exhibit Number 5 in the back of the
sane pamphlet? I will ask you if thié is a sample of one
of the types of shrines in addition to the Hopi or the
eagle Bhriﬁes?

A I have never seen that particulsmrone as far as my
mmory goes, but this is typical of shyines. They may or
may not have piofogxaphs as this one does, but they are areas
which are natural;genenlly natural groups of stones, sometimes
artificial, They don’t look like anything important but .
they are places where offerings are made, prayers are made to
partioﬁlar deities and sometimes you caﬁ find offerings,
broken notsherd which may have represented offerings of
fcod at ope time but by and large this is the kind of shrine
that you have.

Q You will notice that this is one introduced at
the Grand Canyon and testified tu¢ by an Indian there. |
This is the pictograph of what, Doctox?

A Chaquina. LV\G\ el \‘w%

Q nhw:_;zotom, the tendency then, I take it from
your testimony, is that this direcishunting and plant gather-
ing aétivity to this extent becauzethey go for those purposes
and combine the other purposes with it?

A That 1s true and I think these shrines are par%%gg%gg-

ly‘important beczuse, as I mentioned kefore, they represent
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the most sacred spots in the Hopli country, they represent
their strong feelings with regard to land and territory.

In many cases they symbolize ox represent their
ancostral vill;ges and the activities that they formerly )
carried on in the vicinity of their villages and which they
still v;sit to offer prayers to their ancestors and torthe

deities or objects who are interred in the lmnediate area, as

eagles are,Around these areas.

So that these shrines are a living part of their
territory. They visit them. They know them and they pass
the knowledge to their children.

You have, therefore, not only an actual use of
this territory, a gatheiing of plants and animals and hunting
of animals, but you have these ritumnl ceremonial representa-
tions scattered around over this whole xegion.

MR. BOYDEN: Now, mry it please the Commigsion, at
this time this is sufficient reference in order to use
them as illustrative ol the testimony of Dr. Eggan.

I will have further testimony with respeot to them
with another witness that is coming but in order to make
them part of the record, I would like to offer Exhibits 68

apd 69 at this tine,
CHIEF COMMISSICNER WATKINS: Apy objection?

MR. LITTELL: No objection.

CEIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: They may be SRP001589
I'4
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received.
(Th= cuments referred to
were feceived in evidence as
Petitioner's Exhibit
Rumbers 68 and 69.)
Bi My, Boyden:

Q Doctor, I notice in Hopi Exhibit Number 18,
during the Spanish time, that opme of the trade articles
of the Hopi Indians in additionto tanned hides was rabbit
mantles., VWhat are yabbit mantles?‘ /

A  That document has reference nowadays to what we
call rabhit skin blankets.

Rabbits were used not only for food but their
#kins were taken, cut into strips, and then woven on a cotton
frame usually, woven into quite warm amd useful blankets.
| Q Were those hides tanned before they were woven?

A Ko, they were Jjust dried fox the most part.

Q@  HNow, the tanned hides they talked about during
that time, what kind of hides were those?

A  Those were usually deer skins which were tanned.
Momt of 1ho deex skins aoctially came from the Havasupail ratﬁar
than from the Hopi, although-tha Hopl knew how to tan them
and did so.

Q So that they did a lot of ths tanning for not only

SRP001590
their own hides but the Havagupal?
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A Ro, the lHavasupai did their own tanning.
The Hopl tanned hides but they did not have
deer in very large quantities. So I would guess that most
of what they had for further trade they could well have
gotten from their neighbors.

Q- FRow, Doctor, have you pretty well reviewed the
nature of the Hopl economy as of 1848; that is, comsisting
of hunting and gathering of plants and gardening, raising
of orops and trading? TVere there cther factors by which
they lived as of that period, 18487

A Did you mention domesticated animals? Sheep were
particularly imporitant. Cattle as well, although, apparently
in the diificulfies during the American perlod, most of the
cattle were killed off or run off.

I think that pretty well covers the basic economy.

Agriculture, X would say, was all the way through
the mmsf important activity. The gathering of wild plants
and hunting was important but waxed and waned, depending
on the success of the crops.

As sheep hording came in, it pgyradually took over
the supplyinz of subsistence meat to the economy.

It is xathosr interesting that you can tell how
scarce meat has been all the way through in that mea¢ is not

& basic food. It is thought by the Hopl today to be a gort

of relish, something to be added to the basic cornm, béﬁggfm
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squash, vegetable food.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: What other vegetables
basides squash do they grow?

THE WITNESS: Now they grow quite a fow. 1In 1848 |
they grew quite a few that had been introduced by the
Spaniards but they have small patches of_onions. They .. grew
a few potatoes. Beans, of course, were the important
voegetables besides corn.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Did theoy grow beans
bo!ére the Spaniards camo?

THE WITNRESS: Yes. Beans in their diot essentially
were the main souvce of protein. They have had beans for
a very long porlod of tima. '

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: I don't remember '
hearing of them in any other docket mmbers you have had,
espeoially_in.the west. | |

THE WITNESS: Actually,. this ares 1s the fartbest
north in the western portion.of the United States in which
aboriginal agriculture ohcurred, sir. Boyond this area
during certain favorable times, back several hundred years
ago, in archeological times, crops were grown as far north,
say, as Great Salt lake, in that genmeval area. But this is
practically the northern limit of agrioculture,

As you pgo over into California, they had little

or no agrioculture. SRP001592
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So that anywhere north of here, you would not
have had corn; beans or squash or any of those aboriginally.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: They grew corn in the
Mississippi Basin.

THE WITNESS: Yes, east, all the way up to North
Dalkota. ' |

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: I was particularly
interested in Beans bacause I could noct remembexr reading
about them in any of theséudocket mumbers 1n_these other
areas even where they.grew corn.

THE WITNESS: In the Southernm States, corn, beans
apd squash as an agriculture complex was fairly uidespread
in our southeastern States, in the Mississippi Valley, in
the eastern plains area.

| I don®t know where thé northern limits were but
they were all grown together, sir.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATEKINS: Did they have anﬁ trade
relations with the tribes farther east?

THE WITNGSS: These people?

CHIEF COQMMISSIONER WATEINS: Yes.

THE WITRESS: There must have heen aborigiﬁal
trade bocause some of the kinds of corm that came into this
area were from the Upper Mississippl Valley or were related
to}thoae Einds. Vhether they came scrose the southern

SRP001593
plains or the northern plains, I am not sure that we know,

[
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but there was indirect trade with those areas.

CHIEF COMIISSIONER WATKINS: Ave these Indians
insect enterg?

THE WITNBESS: I think the only insect that the
Hopi might have on occasion eaten were locust but by and
large they did aot sat inseots.

CHJIEF COMMISSIOFNER WATKIRS: They dld not ent
grasshﬁppers?

THE WYTNESS: Not to any great exteat, mo.

CHIEF COMRIXISICHER WATEKIRS: I knov some of the
Indlans up in Utah did.

- THE WITNESS: During times of famino they ate every-

thing, But in ordimary years, they raised a surplus of
aorn vhich they stored and which they traded im parxrt so
that ia ovdinary years or good years they had adequate sub-
gistence. It was only in tines of drought, saveral years
of drought, wvhon theywould have a hard time.

CHIEF COLMISSICHRR WATHINS: They did not have
any wheat, did they?

4 ‘THE WITHESS: The Spaniards iniroduced whont. The
?;D only place they could grow it was in the Moenkopi aren. Thay

did grew ¢ little vheat in the MNoenkopi area. They comtinued
to do that., They grev vheat as late as the 1230%s in %here.

There ara also some accounts of planting whqat

SRP001594
around Roams Canyon in the early poriod hut the climate here
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is not very good for wheat. It needs irrigation.
By llr. Boyden:
' Q You said about the blankets being woven, rabbit

type, but were the Hopl weavers?
aA I guess I took that for graanted. They were quite
excellent Weavers.
To bogin with. earlier in the pre-Spanish times,
they wove almost entirely in cotton.
| I think I mentioned the large number of blankets
or cotton robes which they were able to collect to give away
to Espfjo. They still continue to weave cotton. The bridal
- costumo; when a woman gots married,has to be made out of
| cotton. It is made out of white cotton and woven in the
kivas, 20 they still maintain the weaving of cotton for that
mrpogse and also for leggings and other ceremonial equipment.
But with the coming in of sheep gnd wool, they
rapi&1y transferred to the weaving of wool. They wove
”  women's costumes, the men®s costumes as well, and ceremonial
‘biankets for weimth and for various other purposes. That
-they still continue to do but now it is almost obsolete.
Q Vhat was the situation ia 18487
a In 1848, thoy were weaving wool and cottonm, too,
Q Did they weave blankets also?
A

Thoy wove blankets, blankets not so much as women's

dresses and men's kilts, and in more recent times coremoninl .o
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¢lothing.

Q I notice in Hopi Exhibit 24 that there is a trade
item, the Havasupais were wearing Hopikhirts. Was that a
part of the weaving you are speaking of now?

A Yes.

Q Does that pretty woll covear the economy or the
nature of the use of the area that the gbpis did use, Dr.
Eggan, as of 18487

A I think we mentioﬁed the major activities.

| I oould add more detail. I don't know whether
it is necesnary.

Q I think that is sufficient to illustrate the
point we want.

| Now ¥ would like to develop just a little more
fully some of the testimony yon have already given by a
series of meps that wa have developed.
'Could you help me put this one up, Dootor, please?
I now unfolﬁ Exhibit 57.
Doctor, will you tell us what this map is?

A  Exhibit 57 is a map which comés from the Spanish
poriod, drawn eassentially by a Spanish topographical engineer
named Niocholas de la Fora, and also listed is Urretia.

This is 2 map whioh wags drawm in the period around

1776 to 1778. It was not actuzlly dated. Paxrt of the data
SRP001596
on this map -= it is o map, first of all, --
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Q Bofore you go to the past this is not accurately
dated, we are able to date the map by the men whé went
there, aren't we, Dootox? |
A Yes. I ueant the wap itself does not have a date
on 1it.

Q But the men who prepared this material went there

Rew Spain, as it was in 1770%s,

at a particular time, did they not? .
A Yes. This is a map of the northern fromtier of %z%g; '

It is based in part upon

‘the reports of the Escalante Expedition, particularly on

the map drawn by Don Bernardo de lMiera y Pacheche, fvho
— ) )

ﬁersonally went 3 Qw:‘l:h Escalente and visited the Hopi
country in the 1860%s. And this material was, I think,
originally sont to the King of Spain and the King sent it
on to de 1la Fora to incorporate in his map.

Q  Dootor, this work is referred to in one of the
Horl exhibits that we have now, is it not?

A It is reforred to, the materials are referred to
in Exhibit Number 24 on page 4.

Q Then these particular people are referred to
in ome of the documents although we do not have that part ab-
stracted in our brief and that is Hopi Exhibit 23-A amnd
23-8, it is that same book. I just give the information
to find it.

SRP001597
That 1s correct, is it not?
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A The important thing for your purpose here ig ==

Q Now, Doctor, this purnorted, did it not, to cover
a perlod from 1766 to 1768, taken from those other exhibits?

A In that general area, yes.

Q That is just eighty years before the Treaty of
1848, was it not?

A That is correot. _

Q Did it outline the various provinces, including ¢
the provimcs of the Moqui as reported to the King of Spain?
A It does, Here is the Province of New Hexico
and adjoining that is the ®rovincio de Moqui, lying apparently

between the Colorado River and the Little Colorado River
here which goes on over here, here it is listed as the Rio
Colorado.

Q I will ask you to tell us where the southern
line 6:! the Province ofs Moqul is drawn here by the Spanish
at this period.

A The southern line seems to bo down here somewhat
below the Little Coloxado.

Q And. the northern line appoars to be where?

_ A There is no norther,line except the northern
portion of the map. It seems to go here a little beyond
the river called the Rio de Navajo. '

Q Yhat is that river now?
SRP001598

A It is probabl&he San Juan.
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CHIEF CGRHISSICHER YATEIWR: You say it goes
a little north of that river?

THE WITNESS: T7he word"province'at least is written
north of that river. _

CHIEF COMHISSIONER WATKINS: Does this map go clear .
across the whole of North America?

THE WITNESS: No, this is just, I think this is
Just the arem of the northern <frontiers of New HMexico. It
goes out here into ~= out here is the land of the Comanches.
This is the Staked Plains area.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: What is the nameo at
the top in the right-hand corner‘i_’

THE VITNESS: This is Tierra -- land of the Iscandis.
This is the Province of the Tewas. This is probably the
Texas reglion, the Gulf reglon.

By iir. Boyden:

Q Now, Dogtor, the Province of lloqui as reported to
the King in this period was larger than the area that is
olaimed here in all directions, is it not?

a That is true.

Q ¥ow, I will ask you to tell us what Exhibit 58 is,
the map, referring to the book we have, the desk book.

A Thies is a map based upon the Jjournmal of Father

Garoé’s., whose journey we mentioned, a map dated 1777 which

is just two years after his journey from the Gulf o%RFE’.&1§29,
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" California up from Somora up into California and into the

Hopl area.

Q

o b 2 b

A

Are the Moguls shown on that map, Doctox?

There it no niant:l.on of the Navajo on this map.

The Moguis, I said.

The Moaquis, yes, they are shown on thisg map.

It shows the Yuta Indians, does it not, above them?

Tho Yutas are shown to the north. Be did not get

beyond Oraibi. En route to Oraibi or coming in from the west

there is at this time no montion of the Navajo.

O » 2 B O

It shows the Apaches to the south, does it not?
I believe it does though I don?t have a copy here.

Do you have that before you?

No, I do not.

X guecs rather than rely on your memory,ywishould

rafor to this map.

Now, on the south, it shows the Apaches and to the

southeast the Hualapai.

A

Southeast. The Paiutes to noxrthwest “The Utes up above

vhat may be probably the San Juan.

Q
A

Q

89. Tell us what that nap is,
D'M‘ﬁu rhe ’

A

Byt doos not show the Navajos on this map?

It does not.

Kow, I will ask ycu to tuzn to the next one, Numbex

SRP001600

Map 59 is the Disternel map of 1847. 'This was
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a mp apparently prepared for the Treaty of Guadalupe
Hidalgo., It is tho same as Map Number 1, Map Numbexr 1 is
a portion of this.

Q Map Humber 1 is a larger mep of the poertion we
are'interesteﬂ in but those avre taken from the same map,
are they not, Doctox? |

A I believe they are.

Q Now, this is at the time of the Treaty of Guadalupe
Nidalgo in 18487

A The year 1847.

Q The year before?

A It was apparently prepared for that, for the
purposes of that treaty.

Q Will you tell us the varions locations of the
indian tribes on that mapf

A . The Hoqui India=ns are shown in roughly their proper '
positio. ani ths 2aiq de ios Indlos Navajos are shown to
.tho northeast of the Moqui Indians.

Q ﬁoughly what position does that place them in
our present geography?

A lLooking at this map in tho position of the river,
it places them in what is now the State of New Mexico,
northern New Mexico, north central New Mexico.

Q Who is to the south of 1t?

A To the south of them is Apache Tierra, land of $he)
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Apaches, Cosainos, Indios Cosninos, or Havasupai are almost
directly to thewsst of them.

Q What to the north?

A I don't see ony Indians listed to the north until
you get up to the Ute gioups.

Q Now, that is 1847. The noxt map I believe is
Kumber 60, That 1s what date?

A  This is the map prepared by Captain R. D, Marcy
of the U, 8. Infantry under orders of the War Department
and is based on explorations in New Mexico, 1849, '50, '31,
'52.

Q ¥hat is the relative location of the Moquis and
Ravajos on that map?

A The Hopis are showno“ere for the first time,
perhapf)tha Little Colorado River is shown in its proper
position. The Moguis are east and north of the Idttle
Colorado River and we;t of Fort Defiance. '

Q RNow, I will show you Exhibit 61, Will you tell
us what that map 1s?

A 61 is a map based on the recommalssance of the

'Zuni and Idttle Colorado and Colorado Rivers by Captain

Abert, Chief of the Corps of Engineers, made before him under

_his direction by Captain Sitgreaves, top California Engineer-

jng Corps, assisted by Lieutenant Park and Mr. Kernm.

SRP001602
MR. LIT{ELL: I tho Commission please, this
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witness is qualified as anthropologist and hrcheologist.
Now he is testifying as a historian. .

I understood from Mr. Boyden we wer%not to heve
historians inasmuch as the documents speak for themselves.

I think they stand squarely onm their own two feeot
and the witpess adds nothing to it although I respect, as
usual, his great erudition in all these matters.:

MR. BOYDEN: The most effective way for us to
understand what we are 'all talking about is to understand
the exhihlis as they tie in with the other exhibits we have.

I am connecting thom with this map.

He is perfectly capable of doing it.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: I imagine an
anthropologist has to study some history. He may not be a
specialist in history but be has 2 goneral knowledge of them.
I gee no reason why his testimony should not be received.

By Mr. Boden:

Q You may procesd, Doctor,

A Map Rumber 61 shows the Moquis or Hopi Ind:lans'
Just to thé north of the Little Colorado River. It shows
the Navajos in what is now the lakachukai MHountains. This
is geographioally as far as the Moquis are coacerned at least
in the proper i)oaition.

Q It shows the Navajos east of the Yoquis?

A East and a little bit to the north. SRP001603
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Q That expedition was when?

A That was Captain Sitgreaves® expedition, They
mapped the Little Colora&o area and I think thore is a state-
ment in there that the lMoquis ° .were to the north of the
Little Colorado. |

Q What time was that?

A 1851, if I romember.

Q 1 will show you Exhibit 62,

COMMISSIONER SCOIT: . That wag .62, was it not?

MR, BOYDEN: No, this was 61.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS:t Santa Fe, New Mexico,
it looks like 1857.

THE WITNESS: Number 62 is 1857. That is right,
slr.

This map of the Department of Now lexico was

prepared under tho direction of Colonel Bonneville. It is

T —— T

inpoxtant for our purposes, I think, because it is the first

map that outlines both Hopl and Navajo territory.

The Hopi Indians are put in 2 block north of theo
0% noytl o e

<

Little Colorado River and some range of mountaius.

The Navajo Reserve is based upon Governor

—

Moyiwethor's  agreemsnt, treaty agreemont with the KNavajo

in 1855. _'The territories hlocked out here run from where

the Chinle Valley, as they called it then, the Rio de Chelly, -
SRP001604
where that joins the San Juan, along the San Juan to Amarillp
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Canyon and down Amarillo Canyon, diagonally along the
height of the land to the head of Zuni Creek, down along
™ Zunl Creek to where the Zuni River, to where the river
intersects the Colorado and then straight gorth to the
point of origin.
ﬁy ¥r. Boyden:

Q Now I want to refer you to the Meriwether Treaty
as sget !orfh in Navajo Ezhibit 289. 127, I thought it was.-
I guess I have it in the wrong place.

I wust have two markers.
Yes, Navajo Exhibit 127.

Now, I am pariicfilarly anxious to have you read

(/

to us the eastern boundary of the Meriwether Treaty from
Navajo Exhibit 127. | |

A The eastern boundary -- the easterm boundary of
the Meriwether agregmant and treaty went from where the
Zunl River enters the mouth or enters into the Little-
Colorado, themce north to the beginning, which was where the
Rio de Chelly, or as we now say Chinle Creek, enters the
San Juan River,

Q Now, X would 1ike to refer to Exhibit 2, Doctor,

- for this purpose, to clarify one matter.
HR: BOYDEN: Now, may I state to the Comission,

it is alreadi in the record but I think it should be reiterated

hore, that Exhibit 2, the base map,was the base map used with
. SRP001605
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Exeéutive Orders put on it, was used in the Healing v.

Jones as Exhibit No. 440.

Now, on that base map thore is a lino drawn over
here called Meriwether Treaty, July 18, 1§55, Royce.
By Mr. Eoyden:

Q Now, I will ask you if you have caused to be

- placed on this map since its introduction a line where you

have just described from Exhibit 127, Navajo, the Meriwether

Treaty?

A I have, yes.

Q That goes frecm the place where the Zuni River enters

the Little Colorado up to -~ reading from the treaty —--
L —————

this point om tho San Juan fo where?

—————,

A The beginning iz on the south bank ¢f the San

e

Juan River at the mouth of the Rio de Chelly.

The Ric de Chelly is the old name for what we now

call Chinle Creek. That is the river tbat runs out of the .

——

Cenyon de Cheliy.

“h—mé——_—;;:;;;;;;; 127, it described the ihst-course as
running from the place where the Zuni runs into the Little
Colorado to the point of begimming?

A That is »xighbt.

Q That dotted ied line that you 5ave cauged to be

placed on this map is a demarcation of that line, roughly?

A Yos. Tho only exception is then resexrving -- thkewoos
.--"'"—. - .

"
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north to the beginning excluding the land owned by the
Pueblos of Zuni and Mogqui and reserviag to them all their
rights and privileges.

Q So that this started at a point of beginning and
then going east, and back down to whore the Zuni enters the
Little Colorado, so that everything was east of that point
described in the Eeriwether treaty?

| A That is correct.
CHIEF COMMISSIORER WATKINS: VWhat do you .mean by
everything? What are you talking about?
¥R. BOYDEN: BEverything that is described within_
the Hexriwether itreaty.
By Mr. Boyden:

Q Maybe it would be wellrto Just read that descrip-
tion, Doctor, and point it out here so we will see without
any question. _

MR. ROCHOW: You mean land east of that dotfed line
was considered Navajo land?
MR. BOYDEN: That was placed in there for *he

Eavajos under the terms of the treaty.

MR. ROCHOW: I think that is what Mr. Watkins

was wondexring about.
By M. Boyden:

Q Will you Jjust roughly describe where that was so

that we will understand what the Meriwether treaty oov;ii§QM7
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-

Chinle Creek rums out of the Canyon de Chelly,

formerly called Rio de Chelly. It runs up into the Son Juan

River at this point.

Starting at this point,the troaty describes an

area up to Amarillo Canycn which atarts-right here, Jjust

beyond Fruitland. Then the line goes up Amarillce Canyon

to ag far as it goes.

'Ihen this 1s the area of the division of land

because of east=flowing and west-flowing rivers.

From here down to the headwaters of the Zuni area,

somowhore in the vioinity of present Fort Wingate.

it enters the Little Colorado and thean noxrth to the beginning.

Then along the north bank of the Zuni River to where

This was tho reserve laid out in the agreement

between MNeriwether and the Navajos which took place om July

18, 1855.

It is our most definite statement, somewhero near

~

1848, as to what the actual boundary botween these two groups
e i ———

Q

A
Q

itgelf? Read it. Reserving what?

: |

—

Vas there a reservation in thim that was to ba

given to the Navajos?

This is listed on this map -

I meant was there a reservation in the treaty

Yes.

SRP001608

Reserving, as I mentioned, excludiung itle land
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owned by the Puebles, Zumi and Hoqui, and resexviang to them
all their rights and privileges ap<s also reservation for the
United States.

4] Within this area that you have described, it
excluded that Eha;‘.’was owvned by the Zunli and also that that"
was owned by the Moquis within that area?

A That 1s correct.

Q That is the wording of that treaty?

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Was that treaty
ratified?

MR. BOYDEN: No, 1t was not. This was 1858,

TEE _WIMS: 1855,

MR, BOYDEN: That is correct. I beg your pardon.

By Mr. Boyden: _

Q Now, pootor, the doouments disclose, do they not,

2 discussion of this with the lMogquis? |

Will you rofer to thoae documents for .us? .If you
do not have the numbers of them yot, juat tell us what the
situation was with Meriwetber and the Navajo Indians with
respect to this treaty as disciosed by thel dmnts.

A Well, the dacuments suggest that or indicate that
this treaty =-

8. LITTELL: I hope it ia understood, if I may
interrupt, that my objection goes to all this lime of questions

which the witpmess is answoring, explaining the contentsSrizgo1609
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these documents. They speak for themselves and thoy are
subject to interpretations and various legal conclusions.

CHIERF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Your objection will
run. However in all the testimony I have beard om this
case up to date, thore has been a lot of commont that has
alreadylheen shown on the maps if any one wants to take
time to read thom. -

Ve are vary libheral —-

HR. LITTELL: This is not objectionadble, It is
a matter“of convenience., But when it comes to intexrpreting
and explaining contents oan document which speoaks for itsel?,
that is quite anothexr matter, _

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Nearly all the experts
w have had in this caso have been guilty of that.

I dc not think it is an offense because it helps
us to get their points of view at ieast of it. We can give
it whatever weight we think it desexves.

HR. LITTELlﬁ& I did nét went anybody to thinkt I wes
totally asleep at the switch for future generations reading
this recoxd.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKIRS: I am sure no ome
will get that impression from reading this case.

Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: In the documents submitted, we have

a lotter from Governmor Meriwether to the Coumissioner ofSRP001610
______________.--—“'—"—__ -
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n__:d:l.an Affaire in which he statos that these boundaries

were selected by the Navajo.

We also have a letter from Colonel Podge, who was

the Navajo agent, stating that the Navajo were very pleased

ot "

with theee boundar:l.es.r

There are a numbor of othor statements to the
effect that these boundaries were thought by the white
officials to be too liberal, which may be one reason, if I
may venture a commont, that it was not ratified.

This is irmportant, I think, because this is an
agroemont before tho Navajo wars., This was an agreement
which was entered into in an attempt to -stabilize the situa-
tion here.

All told, twenty-seven Favajo chiefs signed this

agreemont and Colonel Meriwether or Governor lleriwsther

for the United States.

“—

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATEINS: Will you indicate
on there where the State 11&93 are botween Arizona and New
Moxico, Utah and Colorado?

Ve cannot determine it from here. Is it labeled?

MR, BOYDEN: Yes, Colorado, Utah, Naw Mexico,
Arizona,

CHIEPF COMMISSIONER WATEKINS: I was not looking
faxr enough to the top of the map or = near enocugh to the
bottom to got 1it.

SRP001611



108

7249

THE WITNESS: This map is ten or fifteen miles
furthex west than theactual treaty boundaries which was
set up in the nardharn portion of this ares under the Treaty
of 1868, after Fort Sumner.

HR. BOYDEN: This treaty is also shown on the map,
1868. The doctor speaks of this line betweon hore.

By Mr. Boyden:

.Q  Now, Doctor, I will ask you if this red lipe which
you have ocaused to be placed on there as the western boundary
of the treaty area of NHeriwother was made to conform to the
area that is shown on Plaintiff’s Exhibit 62 and as described
.in detail in Navajo Exhibit 127?

A Yes, thip reserve, this Navajo Reserve here is
essentially the boundaries, is the area described in the
Heriwether agreoment.

Q@ Now I will ask you to look at Exhibit 63. Will
you toli us what that is? '

A This is a sketch of public survey of New Mexioco
and Arizmona to accompany the annual repoxt of the Com-
missioner of the Gemeral Land Office fox 1866, ‘

Q Will you tell us the relative position of the
tribes in that map?

A This shows the Hopi villages in essentially

e

their correct position, north and east of the Little Colorado
SRP001612

River.
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It shows thke Navajos locking to the nortﬁ%ggin

beyond or just into the edge of tbe Rio Chelly or Chinle

Creek.

ER, LITIELL: VWhore does it show on the map?

MR, BOYDEN: Departiment of Interior Geperal Land
0ffice lap.

¥FR. LITIELL: VWhere does 1t show whetheor or not =-
THE WITNESS: The ond begins == well, if you find
Fort Deofiance here, it is about an inch away from Foxrt
Defiance, running over into Santa Ana County.
By Mr. Boyden:
Q Now, I show you Exhibit 64. Will you tell us
what that is, Doctor?
A Exhibit 64 is the National iap of the Territory
of the United Statos from the Hississippl River to the

Pacific Ocean dated 1867 in the office of the Land Bureaun,

made under authority of the Secretary of the Interior.

Q Will you tell us the relative position of the ﬁnjw
and Hopis on that map?

A This is the Hopl villages and essentially theix
proper position to the north of the Little Colorado River.

For scie reason or other, it dees not show the

Navajo at all so faxr as I can find them.

@  Mdap Rumbox 857

A Map Number 65 1s mainly to show the position of

SRP001613
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the Hoqui. who were over on the easterm side and to show
Cosninas Bands to the southwest of them.

Q Again the Cosninas aro which?

A Are the Havasupal. The Cosninas Bands here are
listed r‘oughly hetweon the Little Colorado : River and the

San Francisco Mountains. |

Q In other words, this map shows that the Havasupais
wore next to the Hopis?

A On the west and sounth, yes.

Q In that connmection, have you examined the veport
of Dr. Euler in the Havasupal oage?

A I have meen part of that, sir. _

Q In that, does he mot give a list of wvarious maps

that show the same relative position between the loquis and

' the Havasupais with no Indiesns intervening between thom?

a I beliove that is correct, o
Q Ho gives a list, I think, of eleven maps on-
page 8 through page 9. |
Now, G8, we exanined in connection with the shrines.
The lalst map in the book, 67, X am sure has been
introduced at least twiece hefore, as I look at the documents.
The relative position of the Navajos on certain
dates taken from Spithsonian Miscellaneous céllaot:l.on;

Volume 100, This is Harrington’s repcrt. I think that

is self-exzplanntory, Doctor. We referred +to that hesxsgomm

y
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before.

Now, there are other maps, are there not?

A Theore are many cther maps.

Q And they axe not all in conformity but these are
the maps that illustrate the position of the Hopl claim in
tails case.

A Yes.

MR. BOYDEN: lay it please the Commission, I
want the court to understand as I progress with this case
that I am relying on some documents of the Navajo and some
documents of the Goveromont that are already in evidence which
I think being in evidemce omce is sufficlent. |

CIIEF COMMISSIONER WATKIRS: You bhave a right to
roly on anything that is bofore the Commission.

MR. BOYDEN: Now, particularly there was a survey

" of the railroad, a long series of maps wo had in the first

hearing, and a statement of the Hoqul cqlmtry lying to the
north of the Coloxado, and the Navajos to the east, and so
farth. |

Those doouments and maps I xely upoﬁ at this point.

X also rely on the Navajo documents in so - -ru- as
the Navajos floeing and being chased into the Little Colorado
country during the time of Carson's round-up.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: We will take our

afternoon recess at this point. Abm:t'f:l.fteen minuten®o01615



112

7253

(Thersupon, 2 fiiteen minute recess was taken,)

CEBIEF COMMISSIONER WATEKIRS: The Commission
will resume session.

MR. BOYDEN: Your Honor, so there will be no
misunderstanding, Exhibit\ﬁ}xnbpi,,shows various Executive
Orders vhich may becomo very 1ﬁp&rtamt to our proof of taking.

I assume that the Commission will take judicial
notice of all Faderal statutes and of all executive orders
that are pertinent, without introducing them in the case.

| CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Well, I think as a
rule that is generally true.
~ However, you do not want to count on us knowing
all about them.

MR, BOYDEN: No, I certalnly would bring them to
your attention in the brief.

I did want an understanding it is not necessary
for me to copy them amd ﬁat them in the evidence.

CHIEF COMMISSYONER WATKINS: It will not be
néoesaary to copy then.

By Mr. Boyden:

Q Now, Dr. Eggan, I will ask you if the military
presﬁures of the United States had aﬁy effect upon the
torritorios that we have generally demcribed as Eopli terri-

tories at this time, commencing at the begimming linc of
SRP001616

the Meriwether treaty, going down the San Jusn River until
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it hits the Colorado, dowm the Colorado until 1t hits the
Iittle Colorrdo and down the Little Colorade until 1t hits
,to/the polnt where the Zunl River enters the Little Colorado.

Now I gu <skilng you about that terxitory.

Now, dﬁl the milltary operations of the United
States have any effect upon the entrance of the other Indians
into this terzitory?

A I believe it did.

Q Is that oplnion hased upon the docunents that are
of recard, bhoth ~ vroduced by the Navajos and produced by the
Hopla?

A I think so.

It seens claar from tho last map that we introduced
that the Navajo have baen moving west graduclly from their
original homeland, New Hexico.

I roferred to Dr. Colton's report in Docoument 15,
in Bopi Exhibit 15, on page 2, where he believes that the
Navajo prazing eprea did not come in conflilci with tha Hopl
grazing and hunting area until 1840 or 1860.

You will recall, also, that Gemeral Doniphen coming
into New Mexico, im the Memioun war in 1416, immediatoly
dispatohed anl expodition to tha heart of the Havgjo gountry.
And the United States Army continued this pressure upon the

Navajo and partiouniarly after 13833 whon they were rounded up

by Eit Carson, expeditiocns were comtinued out along the® " °0'°"



114

7255

Littleo Colorado River into the Black liourntain or Blmck

-Mesa area and neorth of that area to rdund up additional

Navajos.

In this period, from 1863 to 1868, many Navajos
fled far beyond the Hopl country and around the Hopli country,
they f£led up into the ragion of Harsh Pass in the Shonta
area where their history is dooumented in William Adams?
Report,Number 18, Hopi Exhibit Number 19, and in cthers.

At this tims there are mumerous documents ;-e!erring
'l.'.o the army .chasing the Navajo down the Little Colorado
regionjnto the Biack lesa area, into tho northerm area, and
even out into the westexn area.

At this time it is clear alsc from studles of the

HavajJo in theso margins that thelr penealogy goes back to

this mriod of the 1660°s and tho 1870°%s.

Efter the release from Fort Sumpner, there was
coatinued pressure on the Hopli areas as documented in Hopi
BExbibit 38.

One of the reasoms, I am sure, that the Hopi
Exeoutive Order Reservation was set up ia 1582 was to protect
them from not only white incursions from the miiiroad which
had Just gome through .to the south, but also from the Navajo
who were encroaching from the east, and in fact in 1888, as
Dx. Colton reports in Exhibil% 13, the Waxr Depariment ordered

the removal of all Navajo trespassing om the Hopl Resexvgiiom,
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an oyder which was not ocarried out hocause of humané reasons .'
for not removing the Hevajo in the middle of the winter.

These numerocus reporis, reporis of ¢thnologists
whith had boen working in this arceg, make it clear that much
ol the expansicn or most of the expansion of the Navajo in
the area surrounding the Hopl Reservaiion wore post-=1860.

That doos rot mean that thore were not Ravajos
in this area before. There were Navajos that came out to
trade much earlier and thexre have been ocoasional Ravdjos
travnling around, but the largé murbers of Navajos which are
found theore in the rocent ﬁast,in ny opinion, were largely
the result of military pressures of the United States Army
upon them in an attempt to keep them from raiding inthe
eastern areas and to put them on & reservation and restorz.
law and order in that area.

AlR. BOYDEN: Your Eonor, this scoms a good time
to discuss a matter which Mr. Littell and I have discussed

with respect to the record ia Healing v. Jones.

e —————

Thoxra in honsiderable evidence in thet oasse that

bt

will bo very helpful here.

——y

I see no point in going through it all again since
we have a recoxd.
Hr. Littell and X have beas discussing it with the

Govermment. The Govermment is a party to that case and has

hoen also served with all of thoze documents. SRP001619
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It soem= to me that perhaps under Section 14,
X bellieve it is, of the Act,this could be dono anyway whore

we are parties, but I believe we could stipulate that any

of us might refer to the record in the cther cage sotting

out such portioan thereof in our briefs as we might think

might be halpful to the Commission, the Govermment, the

Na'_va:)os or the Hopis.

That would save a lot of rec_:ocrd and yet would
nake it available to us foxr various purposes. Since we have
reply briefs, if it is not set ocut accurately or fully, we
can set out the rest of it.

. CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKIRS: It will save record as
2y as the parﬁes are concermed, but it does mot save amything
as far as the Commission is concorned. .

| MR, BOYDEN: It would help the Commission because
instend of handing you 2 terrific amount of material, we
wonld piok from that record that whioh we thought was
pertinent. Ve would have the privilege of doing that
and setting it out in cur briefs to the Commission. That
would save the Commission a tremondous amount of work, as I
geo it.

COMMISSIONER SCOTT: Vhet would you propese to do,
to furnish exerpts ‘or the relevant excerpts?

MR, BOYDEN: From a record you rely ou, ¥eS. srpqoi620

COMMISSIONER SCOTT: 80 the Commiesion ifself
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would have a recozrd?

MR, BOYDEN: That is zight. ’'Ihe Conumiassion would
have it befora it because we would sot it cut in our briefs.

The other could choeok on it because each of us would
have a reply beileZf.

CEIEF COIMISSICGNER WATEILE: Suppose in that recoxd
are things,that we thought werematexrial in this case,that

acithoxr one of ycu mentioned?

o

f
it the Gavernnantv\if the Hopils roquested it, we certainly

KR, BO%?#%: The stipulation could say this: that
av

would have mo objection to producing the whole roocord.

Howevar, 1 have vortical files that are about a
yayrd iong oach and my exhibits, I think, cover three of
those f£iles, in book form. So it is a pretty lavge record.
But 1¢ ocertainly would be available to the Commission. |

CHIEF COMUISSIONER WATKINS: 1 ask Those guestions
because I can realize the desire of parties to cut down on
this hearing and, of course, the Commissim does not want '
it to go any further than absolutely nocessary to give a
pxoper hearing.

At tho same time, 1f you all agree to it, I assume
there i3 no xoncon why we canmot do it.

I think ocur jurisdiotion is very broad as far as
matters of that kind are comoerned.

COMMISSIONER SCOTT: It would be with the privilego.
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or the right of the Commission, which iz assumed of ccurse,
to ask for any porticn cf the record that is not referred to?
¥R. BOYDEN: That is correct.

The Commission could ask for anything.any of the

parties or the Comnission might resort to that recozxd for

my purpoze they desire.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: What mbout the Healing
v. dJones situntien?
MR, ROGCHOW: I think undeyr Section 14 of the

" Bules, Mr. Boyden is right, the transoript or record of any

case n+h:lcl+he Indians axre & party, and here I understand
the Govermmont is also & party, would ho available to be
ugsed in evidence in this case,

I am at & .rather disadvantage, though, since I
had nothing to do with Eealing v. Jones and, of gourse, X
don’t know what took place in the case.

Bht I suppose our U. S. Attornoys 0ffice in Arizona
has a complete transcript of that case as well as a copy |
of all the exhibits if wo don't have that in Vashington.

I an ot sure that we do, although I did read the Navajo and
Hppi briefs that were filed . \n that case.But we borrowed
those from the field, from the District Attormey's Offico,

so I don't think we have them :l.i: Washington. I suppose I

- oould get them. I mean, if the cccasion should arise.

SRP001622
Trankly, it would ke a lot more gonvenient for
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all of us, the Commission as woll es me, if everything
were‘ right here.

I can understand the tremendous exzponse and
burdon that the parties would be put to to reproduce such
a tremondous amount of evidence.

'CHIEF COMMISSIONER _NATKM: Hay I ask this
question? VWill the parties have the tramscoript c¢f the
proceedings here and if we agree with you on this matter of
atipulation, are the dher tramsoripts ready for us to work
on? |

MR. LXITTELL: Yes, indeed, tventy-cne volumes of
them. |

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: You can understand
full well that as far as wo are concorned, it would not be

necessary for us to wait until you file your briefs at

" least to read the evidence. That would be the same thing

as 1f we bad been at the hearing, refreshing our recollec- -
tions. Nome ol ua_have beon at all theo session=s & tho hear=-

ings.
IR. DOYDEN: I think of more sssistance to the

Commission thanhotual testimomy will be the exhibits that

wore prepared.
We ench prepaved thyee volumes of oxhibits. So
there sre six volumes of exhibits, three for the Navajos

and three for the Hopis ,in that case. They cover a Seried
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from the documents that 1 have seen.

You will recall that in this area Dr. Colton gives
the Colorado River and the Little Colorado River as the
area of aboriginal, pre-Spanish Hopi territory.

This is an area that the Hopli demonstrated their
knowledge of wiaen the Spaniards first came in by guiding

them out to the Colorado River and along its banks for s

fow days,

This is an area which is really central in Hopi
theology,.this is the land of their dead, This is the g&rea
across which the Hopi go on lheir journey to the Graand Canyon.

This is the place to which they bsve gone for many
centuries gathering salt.

At Moeankopl for pre-Spanish and Spanish periods,
they have grown cotton and have had agricultural settlements.

By Mr, Boyden:

Q May I styp you there? During the time that the
village was abandoned, between that time and the time that
it was again resumed,did the Hopis contimue to grow cotton
in that aren?.

A The Hopis continued to farm that area during that
interregnum in living there,yes.

Q Do you remember the dates that Moenkopl 5 2 village
for livingmrposes was abandoned and then resumeﬁ?_

SRP001624

A 1t was resumed somewhere in thef}&ﬂ?“sT 1 forget the
L



1356

7276

year it was abandoned.

This is an area in which Escalante found the Hopi
cattle herds and horse herds in 1776.

This is an area which was one of their traditiomal
hunting grouads. It was through this area thet they went
to trade with the Havasupal and through shich the Havasupail
came on railding expeditions and occasionally lived there
for a short time.

It wvas through this area that their trading routes
to the Paiutes went.

In this area, they have not only & large oumber of
eagle shriznes but they also have cachina shrines, shrines

tn thelr war gods and the major shrine to Masau'u, who is

one o their major deities.

This is an area, too, that on all of the maps I have
examined up to this pericd and around this period there 'is
no evidence that any other Indianséwere living coantinuoualy
in this area.

The Havasupal were hy and large on the other side
of the Little Colorado River and the Paiutes, except as they
came in for tra&ing expeditions or for occasional visits,
were largely on the other side of the Colorads River up to
this beriod of 1848,

So, that, for this area, I think it is reasomably .

clear that the Hopl made use of it. They cccupied a good
SRP001625
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portion of it,.

There is no evidence that any other Indian group
in 1848 laid seriouvs claim to it.

Q Doctor, 1 would like to move over to the eastern
district now because I notice that the Meriwether treaty
line on the other map goes through a point that cuts off a
portion of the northern, a portion of the eastern,and also
cuts off a portion of the southern area.

So, without trying to put that map back up again, |
I think you will remember where that goes, do you not?

What do you consider as the eastern line of Hopi
use and occupation as of the date of thc Guadalupe Hidalgo
Treaty in 18487 |

A The best evidence for the eastern Iine in 1848, I
think, is the Meriwether agreement which was made sowe seven
years later. Because there were few visita-_to the Hopi area |
in the period from 1846 to 1855, the only accounts we have
I think are of ' Surgeon Ten Brosk's expedition. He came in
from the region of Fort Deflance visiting the Hopi. As he
went back after same two days® journey, he s3ays:

“"Now we ares in Navajo country"
but he does not give enczugh details as to just whore he was,

It was his first trip in, too.

The Meriwether treaty does giw us a clearcut line,

: SRP001626
running north and south from the mouth of the Chiale River
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to where the Zuni River intersects the Little Colorado.

This is a line which, as I mentioned earlier, was
selected primarily or was part of the area selected by the
Navajo, themselves.

You will recallthat Dr. Colton®s archeological
boundary rurg trom#he San Juan, from the region of Monument
Valley down to the Little Colorado in this vicinity.

The Hopi, in this area, today, have shrines which
are very close to this boundary line. They have shrines here
in the region of Cornfield, on Pueblo Colorado Wash. They bave
shrines east of Steamboat Canyon in this area, and they have
shrines along the mountain area of Black Mesa region just to
the north, |

We have some individual testimony on the part of
Navajo as reported by Dr, Colton in Exhibit 15, where he
reports that Charlie Day, a Kavajo scout in the United States
Army, told him that whon ke was a boy, before 1863, he was
living a fow miles east of Keams Canyon and at that time, he
says, there were no Navajo to the wmst of their family.

In 185%,a scouting party, as evidenced in document

19, page 1, wont through the Black Mesa area. They found no

'Navajo habitation on Black Hesa except on the very extreme

eastern portion, which would be in this general area across
from Chinle Wash,

COMMISSIOEER SCOTT: Does that line run west of Caayon
o SRP001627
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de Chelly?

THE WITHESS: Yes, here is the Canyon de Chelly,
Canyon del Muerto, Chinle vailey.

fhis line of Governor Meriwether runs to the west
down throﬁgh here, to the (west of Chinle, down pretty much
through'he valley,

The actual 1888 Navajo treaty was right her on this
particular liine right at the very mouth, |

later on it vas extended over a bit. But the fact
that the Hopi have shrines here, that the archeological
picture, the Hopi and archeological area as defined by
Dr. Colton runs here, that the Meriwether treaty of 1855
established this line as a dividing line or as the western
boundary of the ¥Navajo Beserve; Plus some ethnological
evidence that is rathel interesting.

The Hopi, as is illustrated in Exhkibit 55 on page
2, the Hopi of Firat desz around 1850 made an agreement with
the Navajo wh;ch got the boundary line just weat of Ganado
and marked it on 2 trail with a pile of stones.

The Hava jo, with réference to " this agreement,
gawe to the Hopl a ceremonial, tipeoni,in Hopi chronology,
the ceremonial wrapping of feather as a symbol of this
pnftioular agreement.

1 think at a later time perhaps & witness will bg. ;6.5

introduced who will speak of this from a more direct knowledge.
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But this old treaty made by the Navajo and the
Hopl, the use of shrines, the documentary data, suggests
ﬁ% to me that this particular boundary 13 & generous one and is
B a reasonable and reliavle one,

It is the best boundary for this particular period
that I can find in the.documentary data for putting togethar
documentary and other types of data.

By ¥r, Boyden:

Q Now, Doctor, the excepti#ns in that treaty of
Hopi lands that would lie east of that line, is it sufficiently
clear in your mind in the documents as to what Hopi counﬁry
was referred to by that that yﬁu would care to testify ahout

it?

A I was looking at something else.

Would you repeat the first part of that?

Q The exception'that is put in the Mcoriwether treaty--
in other words, they said excepting the landsthat this encloses
that belong to the Zuni and the Hopi; my question to you
is, from the documents and the information in your hands
is it sufficiently clear in your mind as to wﬁat Hopi 1ands

they Teferred to in that territory that they desired to

exclude that you would care to testify about here,
A I could guessias to what it might be,
Q I am not asking you to make A guess.

SRP001629
A My goneral impression is that Governer Meriwether
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did not know much about the Hopi and he was puttiang this
in to reserve whatever rights the Hopi or Zuni might develop.
The Bopi do have an earlier association with Canyon
de Chelly.
There are scme archeological connections but they
are long nefore this particulﬁr period.
He may have been more concerned with the Zuni claims
which he probably was familiar with which are to the east and
south of this area. ’ ‘
14] My point, Doctor, is this, to be more specific. 1==n—; é

take it from your testimony you would not ~ care to say

R

that the Hopis:in 1848 had land which they owned or used

st

and occupied exclusiveiy east of that line?

st el

i

A “X don®t know of any at thlt time, no.

b R VAL EU

There is one small bit of evidence that is worth ‘ :
mentioning. In Richard Van Walkenburghtas history of the |
Navajo country, he mentions in Steamhoat Canyon permaneat
Navajo settlements were started shortly before the exile to
Fort Sumner in 1862 and 1863,

He said it bad, however, been used intarmittently
for a hundred years as one of the outposis of Navajo expansion.;

| This seems to say in effect that Steamboat Canyon
which I mentioned was not occupled until foughiy around 1860,
Q 'Where is Steamboat Canyon?

\ SRP001630
A Steambont Canypn is here,
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Q That 18 between the Executivs Order hkeservation

and the Msriwether line?

A Yes, just a little bit, ten miles or fifteen miles

west of it probably.

MR, LITTELL: East of the Executive {rder line?
THE VWITNESS:

West of the Meriwether line and east of the Executive Order
Reservation. It is wel®™ marked topographically.
By My. Boyden:

Q Doctor, that icaves us with respect to the southern

area from a tract of land that is south of the Executive
Order Reservation and south of the green part marked “East”
on Hopi Exhibit A but excludes a portion of the part marked

‘"South" that lies east of the point whore the Zuni River
eaters the Little Colorado.

Will you tell ue whether you have an opinion with

respect to that scuth area that is left as to whether the

Hopis used and occupled that in the same sei=s that we have
already described as of 18487

A You are referring to this particular area down here?

Q I am referring to the purple area, excluding, however,

everything that lies east of the Meriwether line, so it will be

this part over here. s

T

'f want to ask your opinion with respect to that

part that is west of the Meriwether line and 2ll in purple on

SRP001631
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Exhibit A,
A I think the western area was an assential part
of the Hopi area of use and occupancy,

All o the early accounts of Government surveys
during the American period referred to the 2rea rorth of
the Colorado River as part of the Hopi territory.

The Apache groups further south came up to the
rim occasionally but did not occupy tiuat area beyoud the
Little Colorado River,

The Hopi, 29 a matter of fact, traditionally have -
sites down 2ll through these rivers, streams running into |
the Little Colorado River from the south, at least over
this far, and they have a number of sites down there and
they visit them, |

There are a number of ruins .down there that they
think of as ancestral homelands but the archeological invesfi-

gations of these sitea have not progressed very far and we
don't have as clear tie-up of those sites with the Hopi
country aé we do those on the Little Colorado itself,

5o that, the fact that this area was used continuous-
ly as a punting area, that they visited for a variety of
cereménial purposes, that there are shrines both along the
Little Colorado and heyond it, marticularly in the San
Francisco River region, that ceremonial fox trapping ground

SRP001632
went down into this region, that eagle trapping was particular-




13

buttes region which was used for that purpose.

7284

ly important along this area, I think makes it clear that
the Hopi made continual use of this area and that I am sure
that they considered it an integral part of their homeland.

Q Now, Doctor, did that not include some grazing
of cattle and sheep in the Spanish period in that area, too,
the western portion of that?

A Only in the westernm portion.

In the southern portion, as you get further toward

the Little Colorado, it becomes drier and more deserty and

it actually is not a very favorable area except in the Hopi

Q I take it it is your opinion that they did use :
and occupy it exclusively as of that period, 18487 ' ’i
A Yoes. The Havasupai to the west and south and
Apache tjhhe south, to my knowledge, made no claim to that
and ay strong impression is that the Navajc in that area
weré in there after 1848,
MR. ROCHOW: IWOnld you read his answer?
His voice fell and I didn*t hear it.
(The answer referred t#has read by the reporter
as above set forth.)
By Mr. Boyden:
Q Now, Dozstor, I will ask you the same question with
respect to the are that is marked in yellowish buif color

and marked"North" on Hopi Exhibit A, with respect only to that
SRP001633
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portion thereof that lies west of the Meriwether line in

that district.

A This is an area which is the traditional homelsad
of part of the Navajo. The Kayenta area up in this Marsh
Pass region —-

Q Youmid*Nava jo",

A 0f the Hopi- the Kayenta area in this north part,
the ceniral part is part of the traditiomal area from which
the Navajo pop\ilation comes.

On the area of Black Mesa which extends into that

region, there are --

g

Q Let me correct the tecord here, Doctor.

You have said "Navajo"' twice.
A Maybe I am getting tired.
Q You have sa._:ld "Navajo." I don®t want to get in the
record the wrong thing he;re. 1 want to be sure about that,
HR. LITTELL: Would you like to wait until tomorrow
morning, Mr. Boyden?. .3
MR. BOYDEN: No, this does not need to be rehearsed. }
By Mr. Boyden:

Q Now, I will ask you, Doctor, if when you were

referring to this area that I an#)ointinz my finger just belww

the word "North," whether that was the ancestral home of the

Navajo or the Hopi? |
SRP001634 -
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Q The record will say "Navajo." That is the reason

1 wanted to correct it,

One other question. Since you also used the Navajo

with respsct to this areg 1 take it there, too, you meant Hopi?
MR, LITTELL: Which did you say, Ravajo or Hopi?
THE WITNESS: Do you want to know what I said or what

1 meant?

L

MR, LITTELL: Well, what you meant.

I am not trying tok:lp you up, I want to know.

THE WITRESS: The Kayenta area,as I explained earlier,
when you were talking about the archaeological background,

is an area from which part of the ancestral population of

L\

the Hopt came in the period 1275 to 1300 A. D.

The Hopi know those ruined cliff dwellings, Patatakian,
Keet, Seel, and others.

On the extension of Black Mesa into that area, there

are important Hopi shrines. There are ruins also on Black

Mesa that the Hopi claim. There are a number of clan shrines

in this area all the way up toNavajo Mountain.

There is a famous shrine belonging te the Snake Clan,

which ims oa Navajo Mountain.
There are eagle . trapping shrines and siies slong

the Colorado area in this northern region.

There were occasional hunting expeditions into fhis

.area, part into the west'ern rogion and part into the noxrthgprooisss

Al R A
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These are the main evideace for Hopl claims to
this particular region.
ByMr. Boyden:

Q ¥hat Indians in 1848 were to the north of the
S T R =

Moquis?

A The Indians that were to the north were primarily

the Utes.

Q Is that not consistent with the location of the
tribes during the Spanish and Mexican period also?
- A That is correct.
Q  Now, I will ask you the same question with respect
to the Executive Order Resrervation, Doctor,
| In the year 1848 did the Hopilndians bave the
exclusive use and occupancy as me have heretofore " defined
it to you in the Executive 0Order Reservation?
A Yea; granted that the Executive 6rder Reservation
was not set up then, the area listed in white there was
an area which in wy opinion was exclﬁaively occupied by the
Hopi Indians.

Q So that it is your opinion, from what you have

stated, Doctor, that the territory exclusively used and occupied ||

by the Hopi Indians to the exclusion, of course, of all others,

except for visitors aﬁd raiders, occasionzlly people, extended

on & point commencing, golng counterclock-wise at a point
SRP001636
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down the San Juan to the Colorado, down the Colorado to
the Little Colorado, do=z the Little Colorado to the point
where the Zuni River :nters, and then directly north on the
Heriwether line to the point of beginning?

A Yes.

Q And these various uses that you hawdescribed in
detail as to gathering of plants, hunting, fishing, gathering
wood, grazing cattle, sheep, and other uses emumorated by
you as the nature of the Hopi economy, applies to those areus
of course, unevenly but some in some parts and some in the

other, and that is the basis for the opinion which you give?

A Yes. I want to emphasize that from the standpoint,
of thgmﬂogisthair ceremonial use is just as jsportast ox

perhaps even more 80 than some of the more secular uses we have

been describing but both of these are important and both of

a————

these bave to be taken into consideration.

T ——

Q - Now, both from the standpoint of religion and from

the standpoint of practical use, the Hopl was a different
type of operator than the Navajo, was he mot?
A They were quite different in many respects.
In many respects they wel'e complementary.
Q As contrasted from tgeANavaJo who lived in hogans
and scattered over the territory used, the Hopis lived in
concentratod dwellings, in effect, apartment housess, one on

top of another, and close together in villages,and then
SRP001637
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operated irom that base out in their various directioos,
did they not?

A That is correct.

Q And that was their method of operation and use

of this territory in 18487

A Yes,

MR, BOYDEN: Since we are awfully ciose to adjouraing

time, I would like :o review my record tonight to see if

there are a fow more questions I would like to ask Dr. Egean;
1 ap close to the end now.
CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Ve will recess at

this time until tomorrow moraning at tem o'clock.

(Thereupon, at 4:25 p.n., the hoaring was

rocessed, to reconvene at 10:C0 a. m. Tuesday,

‘October 17, 1961.)
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A In 1300 they were spread out in a much greater
nunber of villages and over a wider area.

They were nﬁt concentrated as they are today.

Q Was each of those villages a separate integrated
pueblo?

A Yes, sir. Some may be satellites of cthers, as
they are today, colonies. / '

Q Surely, Vhat I want to get clear, because I so
understood it yesterday, was that after the great drought
‘there was a greater concentrafion heré, there was water
in this group of pueblos on whaf we Lknow as the Hlesas,
whpie the present villages are located.

It is after that that you‘éet the conéealiﬁg or
the amalgamation into a Hopi culture, as we know it, as ﬁe
have learned it, as I understood you to say as we know it
todaj, is that correct? .

- A Material culiure as represented in therruihs and :
in the surface collections is ancestral to modern fﬂbpil
sulture.

The village organization, the coming together in
larger villages, just began at that periocd and was not
perhaps completed until around 1700 perhans.

Q Theo by 1846 and 1848,vwhere wexre the Hopis?

A That perlod the Tiopls were living on First,

Second, and Third Mesa and the surrvounding ares farming at

[

SRP001641
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it

had now congealed and shrunk to these Nesa top villages

in 1246, a

s you sald, in 17007

When we look at the situation in 1846 and 1848

there they were, is that not right?

A

I don't understand your terms “congealed and

shrunk” because thei» society and culture expanded in

complexity and elaboration during much of that period.

Pueblo Four after 1300 was in this area a mach

more olaborate, represented a much more elaborate cultural

development than earlier.

Q

taiking about cultural development.

they live.
A

Q

Vell, sir, I perhaps misled you. I am not

Villages on First, Second and Third Mesas.

I am talking where

Their population was roughly what? We have the

evidence in the Prescott case and I won't refer to the

exhibit, but do you recall what thoy were about 1846 or 18487

A

different

We don't have any census from there.

If you want to get into census, you can develop

poprulations for this regilon,

I, myself, happen to prefer the Bent Report of

around 2500, 2450 to be exact, for around 184G, 1847.
~— o e

Q

This is the sort of thinz I referred to.

Thore are

SRP001642
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several estimates.

A Dr. Colton has made an estinate in terms cf
archaeological siltes.

When we get a survey as complete as that for the
whole area, for the Awatovi group, mede cn Awatovl and
Jeddito Canyon, we may be sble to plot the z2ctuasl mumber
of ruins, we could plot the actual number of xuins by
decrdes perhaps and arrive at some clear figure.

Q Well, just broadly speaking, they ranged in
population from 2500, let us say, te what, in the period
of twenty years following 18467 .

A Thore were small pox epidemice through here. The
population went up ard down some. Ve don®t have any good
figures until considerably later. -

I think 2500 is roughly a good figure for that

[ S

tine.

— e
Q The smallpox epldemic was in 1850. §
A There was one in 1853, 1854, 2
Q Thore was no census until the troops mnrched in i

there, as revealed by the documents ip the Prescott case, | %
I forget the date but I think it wes about 1880, was it not?
A The first good census was taken by Stephen and
211 excent Oraibi which refuzed to ke epumerated, Jraibi
however, in 16890, was enurerated by the Azmy who came in

there and they mnxchod post them snd counted them.

SRP001643
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The previous census was that of Father Escalaate.
He had 7,497.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: Was that a2 Hopl count?

THE WITNESS: Father Escalante was in there for some
time and he claimed to have made a population count of families
and came out with an estimated total of 7,400 -- I think it
was 7,454. |

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Is that for Hopis?

THE WITNESS: That is for Hopis. I think, ayself..
that ﬁrohably was sligzhtlpxaggerated but I dont Lknow how much.

MR, ROCHOW; That was 1775, was it not?

THE WITNESS: 1775 ox ‘76, |

By Mr. Littell:

Q Now, in describing the uses to which the Hopis
put thizs land you talked at considerable length about the
shrines. Did you hear the testimony at Prescott on hehalf
of the Navajos, particularly Scott Preston and Feshlakai?

A I heard part of it. I Jjust heard the last portion
of it. . -

Q VWere you in the course of your studies made aware
of the faoct that the Navajos hunted eagles in the same places
because that is whore eagles were and they had their Navajo

shrines and sdmetimes there was quite a vigorous competition

bet-veon the Hopis and the Navajos as to use of those shrines?

A I am aware of that, eir. The Navajo have borrowed

SRP001644
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from the Pueblo groups, not necessarily from the Hopli but
from the Keresan in the east, but from the Zuni, Taos, and
other villages, theylborrowed a great deal of their culture
and ceremonies and bellefs,

0 I am glad to hear that there is something they

borrowed. There was no original Navajo culture in respect

to the eagle catching shrines, then?

A There may well have been. I don't know but --
Q In the course of your studies —

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: Let him finish his
anawer.

He said "but."

THE WITNESS: BEagles are caught in the northern
plains. It nmay be that the Navajo coming down from the
Canadian forests learmed to catch eagles by the methods
used in the Northern Plains.

But I have no evidence of that.

MR, LITTELL: 1If the Commission please, coﬁld we
take a recess at the moment?

My secretary has brought some papers.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VWATKINS: Let us take a ten
ninute recess.

(Ther2 upon, a reccess was taken for ten
minutes.)

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATRINS: The Commission wi1k:0001645
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resume session.
You may proceed.
By Mr., Littell:

Q Dr. Egpan, if the Hopils used such a vast terri-
tory, as is reflecteq in these shrines on Exhibits 68 and
69, how often did they get to them?

Do you have any knowledge of this subject?

A Yes., Visits to some of these shrines by each group

were made almost every year. They might not go to the same

particular shrine in successive years but they go to one

of a series of sh:ines periodically.

Q If they occupied so great a territory, why this
aconcentration of shrines nemr the villages?

A The concentration of shrines near the villages
is 1+art a reflection of the fact that for ceremonial
purposes they not only have distant shrines which are the
real shrines but they have:._ symbolic shrimes closer to
the village that represent these distant shrines. So that
ogrtain cerenoniles, 1nstéad of taking a week off and goiﬁg
to the San Francisco lMountains, they go out and deposit |
offerings at a shrine in the divection of the San Franeiéco
Hountains that represents those mountains.

Q Is this what we call substitute shrines?

A They are realkshrines.

-

Q They are in fact, though, substitutions for the

SRP001646 -
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distant shrines?

A They are representations of distant shrines, yes.

Q Then you would modify your statement, would you
not, as to visiting the distant shrinss as frequently as
you indicated?

A o, they visited the shrinsa, teoo,

| You wers talking about eaple shrines, were you not?

You khave tc go to distant shrine; to get to eagles.

Q I am spealking aow of both classes of shrines.

A For major coremonial purposes; they went to the
distant shrines. In tiwxes of crisis, they woat to.the
- distant shrines.

| In a particular ceremony, golng arouad and maﬁing

offorings at these shrines. thoy might go to the local
representatives of them.

Q Now, pou spoke ﬁf the Hopi way of 1life and the
fact that they were great runmers and trained to run. Did
they not run to their fields down from the Mesas? Apd X
am referring to the material neriod from 1348 on.

A They either walked or ran to their Zields, depend-

" ing on how far away ‘they weve. If they were far cnough away

they stayed out #n those areas vhile they oultivated their
f£ields or while they prepaxed them or vhile they harvested
! then. ‘

Q Do you mean to say they would stay out at their

SRP001647
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fields overnight?
A Sure. I have stayed cut with them overnight.
f‘) They still do it.
. | Q Were would those fields be? Can you give me an
example?
A * Somo of those are up inthe 3lack Mesa area.
Soma of them are out to the west of Oraibi, fields over in
the Moencopl area. They stayed over there. They seqnp
permanenf habitations at certain springs, Comar Springs,
and springs in the Wepo Wash down in the edge or south of
the Executive Orﬁer Reservation.

In fact, the Hopi spread out any time fhay could.

O

They only came back, they only returned to the villages
periodically when thoy were forced back, |

Q You mal*o tell me they did not prefer to live
in the villages, they gstayed of thelr own accord?

A They did not feel they hﬁd to sleep in the village .
every night, sir, In fact; some of them had hogan structures
out there. |

I Lave stayed in hogan structures that Hopi have
builit at thelr sheep =amps. I have stayed out overnight
( in hogan type structures at shoer camps ithat the Hopi have

built out away fircm the mesas.
Q Is it or is it noti true that the practice was

quite generel to walk or rum, scmetimes rumn both ways. to

SRP001648
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their field in oxder to got back to the village at night?
~ A That was a common practice, yes, sir. But it was
not an exolusive practice.
Q 0f course mow, A man could walk if he wished.
A Or he could stay there for a pexiod.
Q By the.way, how were these hogans constructed E
that you are talking sbout? Vere they shelters, lean-tos, ;
Irush sholters?
A As far as I could see they wore pencerally Ravajo

style hogan replete with mud plastering.

Q Conducted with the Navajo ceremonial, I presumo,
— the glessiné:ﬁa??
A X am afraid not.

Q Can you give any examples of those? Have you
brought in any plctures, any proof, any fleld work showing
these hogans?

A Ko, but to my personal knowledge, I have been 4n
there, I have stayed in them. This may be something that

they borrowed from the Navajo.

o : 'A Q Did you ever examine the structure of those hogans
" as to how they were built, precisely?

g A I did qo{, but inside vou could see the leaning

j of poles together, I don’t know whether they were construct-
ed in the standard Navajo style but tho effect of them was

i exactly the seme,

SRPO01649 |
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Q You have no field notes whatever as to the
location of these hogans?

A Yes. This one I stayed in was about six miles
wost of Oréibi in the wash between Oraibl liesa and Howell
Mesa.

Q How long did you stay in it?.

A I viéited it two oxr three times. I stayed in
it once overnight.

Q Yesterday you spoke about growing cotton. I got
the impresaipn they grew éotton quite gemerally all over
this territory. Perbaps I was wrong.

Would you confine the growing of cotton by Hopis
to any specific area?

A The growing-of cotton by the Hopis was primarily

in the lloencopl wash area, They could grow it in a few
"'--._______,.__.--—-""“'—7——---__‘

sheltered spois 1in the southern part of the reservation

but so far as I know, X do not know the precise locatlons,
I just heard they pgrew it at a few other places. _
ﬁj the time I was doing field wo:k; the growing
of cotton had practically vanished because of trading
posts and the bringing in of cotton string.
Only 2 little bit was grown for ceremcnial purposes,
for making prayer featliers, and so on.

Q Then what pexriod was it grown in at Mcencopl?

A It has been growva in Movncopi, Y assume, for a

SRP001650



38

7329

very long period of time.

The cotton gérments noted during the Spanish
period, by Espfjo particularly in 1582, very likely were
grown there.

Thare%nve been technicai studies of cotton among
the Hopi botanically and so on, but the main area was in
the Moencopl region. It was a little warmer thore.

" CHIEF coumxss:&ﬁsa VATRINS: Where is that, for
our information, om the map?

THE WITNESS: The Moencopl Wash area, here is
Moencopi Wash running down through here. Here is MNoencopi
iself,

$R. LITIELL: Tke witness is vointing to the
pink.area on Hopi Exhibit A and the word "Moencopi" is
printed there. The wash runs in a northeasterly direction
through a cozner of the Executive Order area.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATEINS: Does it run also into
the Colorado?

THE VITNESS: It rums from the head of Black
Mesa up here almost to Marsh "ass down through Black liesa
out there, this ig floencopl in the present village of Tuba
City, and down here entering just around the area of Cameron.

WR. ROCHOW: It actually runs in a southwesterly
direction, then, instead of northeasterig?

THE WITNES:: Vell, he was volnting to the tob.

y SRP001651
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CEIEF CURMISSICIER FINS: Is that a deep wash?
THE VITNESS: It is a deep wash.
In the licemcopi area it rums through low capyons.
It bas almost a contiguous flow. There is more water avail-
able there than in any of the other wmshes.
CHIEF COMMISSICNER VATKINS: Is it spread out
so thoy would have an area for cultivation?
THE WITNESS: There are benches today and in
the past prob&bly thoy.used fairly extemsive irrigation
there. Today it is fully irrigated by dﬁms and ditches.
CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: That area outside of
the Executive Order of the Hopis, is that where they farn
out to the west? |
THE WITHESS: Yeos, there is the village of Moencopi
which originally was a colony from Oraibi but tkis is an
old planting area, an old area’ also whore they kad cattle.
This area is outside the Hopi Executive ﬂrder
Re<ervation even thougth the time the Executive Order
Reservation was set up there was 2 Hopl village there.
CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: And it is still there?
THE WITNESS: It is gitill there. In fact, now
it is divided inte two villages, upper and lower Moencopi.
CHIEF COMMISSICRER WATKIE_IS: Built in the gume

order?

THE WITNZS3: Yes. The oid village is im the

SRP001652

4




7331

seme geuneral iorm as Oraibi from which the populztism comes
and whore they have their mein ceremomial affiliations.
| " The houses, however, are made cnf of == well, in

both cases they are made ocut of sandstone. They look a
little different because 1t is red sandstonérnstead of gray.

CHXEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Vhere is Ozaibi?

THE ﬁITNESS: Oraibl is the westeremogt village
here of the Third Mesa. This is the westernmost and was
the largest village untll recent split-ups. Part of the
population ffom this area had colonized fais region; prcbably
long in the past, and in 1870%s they reestablished their
ol&rvillage here and lived theore pormenentliy. I think
perhaps in part because by that time +his was a:sacrel.area.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: - Where is Ovaibi with

THE WITNESS: There 1s now I think State Route
Number 3, which rums from Window Rock -- Window Rock, it runs -
through Ganacdo, Steamboat Canyon, Jeddito Trading Post,
Eeams Canyon, Polacca, Second Mesa, Oraibl and then runs

up through Coal Canyon to the city and Joins, whet 1s it,
But you cam go on & paved highway all the way across

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATEINS: Were you cut there

prior to the time thoey had the paved highvay?
SRP001653
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THE WITHESS: I was cut there at ths%tna whon
they bad as far as I can find in many cases RO aighway at
all, you got leost, Well, there wore wagon roads. them I
Arat wont ocut thore there was only ome iwruck ona the Hopi
reservation, one car,

' CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATRINS: I was out there in
1947. I knew thoy wore building highways. I did not know
whether they built it along the same line they had or estab-
lished a new line of highway. |

THE WIYNRESS: They eostablished for the moast |
part a new line for the new highway. The old highwaykent
up on top of the Second Eega in diZferent places, between
Keams Canyon and First Mbsa-isApretty close to the old ome,
but  they roughly followed the oid one but straightened it
out and improved it.

- CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS:0f course, we were
not 1nvestigat1ng claims against the United States Govern~
ment when we were out there. Ve were just seelng the
reservation trying to take care of the living Indians rather
than getting back into thelr ancient history. 1

By Mx. Littell:

Q@  Dr. Egean, the clan division you described still
exists today, does it not?
: It does; sir.

Q You spolte of the break-up. I suppose you referred

SRP001654




7333

to the civil disorder or revolt in COrzibi in the early
1900%s?

A I would not characterize it that way.

Q You use your own phrase. That is what some of
tho books say. I don'tlkaow how to describe 1t.

A In the 18907 essentially Craibi became a center

of Jactional disputes. There was also a pericd of drought

_during that time which put a heavy strain upon the water

" sSupply.

In part, you can see the split-up of Oraibi as

due to ecoaomic causes. In part you can see it as due to a

'factiomal dispute over whether children should be sent to

school and taken out of the control of the village and
outrot thoe teaching to be a Hopi as against going to schéol,
bogrding schools, and going 1n a different direction.

This dispute, however, was solved in a rather
interesting fashion.

They had: a push-of-war, no one was killed, no
one wag injured. The only damage that wee done was by the
United States troops that came there and interiéred.

Half of the popula%ién almost exactly went away
t0 the north to an area around Hotevilla where they had
previously had farms and springs and sottled down there
and gtarted a new_vtllage.

This wag the only disorder,largely was occasional,
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except for perhaps a good deel of verhbal polse vas
caused by American Governmsnt ého did aot understand what
wag going on.

CHXEF COMMYSSIONER WATEINS: What time was this?

THE WITHESS: This culminated in 1806, about
Sepbmber 12, 1906.

The village divided almost . evenly. Balf’ went
off and founded Hotevillas just th;ee or four miles to the
north, ) | i
| By Mr. Littell: . _;_%

Q When you were pursuing your studies, as you

b A AV ey €

;
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described it, winailng the coanfidence of the Hbﬁis and °
gatfing them to talk to you, you must have'found considerable
a1tficulty working with the conflicting views of the clans,
didn®t you? Or diﬁ you?
A Which conflicting views of what clans? |
Q You got an individual from one clan,'oﬁe village,
and an individual from another, and they had soms ?retty

sharp conflicts between each other as to grazing, and other

to the Govermment policies?
A That is not quite true, siz.
The legitimate faction, shall we say, at Oraibi,

led by Chief ILololoua, who had been to VWashiagton, wa;%ed

to send tkeir childrem to school. There was & very, vory

SRP001656
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conservative faction which was mot in power, shall we say,
whioh wanted to obstruct this procedure, it is that group
led by Youlteoma and other leaders who moved away.

Q In any event, did you find that this obstructed

. your pattern 8: study, as you described it yesterday?

: I£ you would 1nterview; say, ten people and
theilr testimony confirmed what each other had said, you
could draw a conclusion on that?
| I anm not quite usiﬁg your language but that is
-the’sense of your story that I got from your statement
yosterday. Correct ve if I am wrong.

) A One of the things that we studied was the develop-

ment of this split and who wont where and bow the clans and

AT 0 | RN

families and cevemecnies were divided. I didn't happon to

write up that portiom of it.

VA T

You cap £ind that in Professor Titief's 01d

Craikl, whewre it is set down in considerable detail.

PPATRASTHULEER S

By this time, this was two generations or a
generation and 'a half later, Oraibi and the Hotevilla

people on the surface got along fine. They visit each otherig

PR O ST e ) o SRR

ceremcnies, they eat in each other®s houses.

Coertainly there - wmere disputes ﬁut they have meothods
of settling thosme. There wasn't any great hostilityexzcept
perhars ca the part of a few individuals.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: Lot mo ask you a quostion

SRP001657
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on that noint.

Counsel asked vou 1n his cross-exnminatio*bout
whether they had confiictg over the use of thelr lanpds.

I want to get the answer to that.

MR. LITTELL: Thank you for youxr heolp, Mr. Chief
Justice.

CHIEF COCRMISSIONER VATHINS: We nre much interested
in ' vhethar or not there were conflicts, whether it was one
tribe or a hal? dozmen {iribes under the same pame.

THE WITHESS: Theore were tonflicts over land in
this area amcng the Hopl, difforent villapes on different
nesas. They have the lines Tuaniag down the washes
diviced and the precilse positioa of those divided lipas.

In some places, it is marked by merkers representing
oarlier agreements, in some cases it is not so marked, and
there is a good deal of argument 2nd conflict back and
forth, But they have methods of solving these without
violence éenérally.

Now, within tho village, the land is crganized
in terms of tyaditional grarnts of specific land that have e
been given to particqlar clans and in Hopl theory this
land 'ms givem whonr the groups Iirst came into thoe village
and was given to thom in exchange faox the performance of

ceremonial activities and for assistance of one sort or

ch 1= normnlly
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the Bear Clan,

S0, in Hopil theory, the Bear Clan, who are represcnted
as being their first, in effect control the land. They allot
particular sepgments of thisg land to specific clans for
performing, say, the Powamu ceremony or acting as god for
the village or for other thipgs.

Now, this system does cause some disputes under the
native pattern bocause a clan may grow large and not have
oenough clan land to support it. Then the surplus nembers have
to be supported from%ther lands which are less useful and
a greater distance away from the village and less reliable
as far as growing crops are concerned.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATEINS: Do they have individual
ownership of land? '

THE WITNLSS: Tﬁey do nct. Within the clan allot=
ments are made by the heads_of the clam to ﬁarticular
families and individuals of that cian but,i@ they stop using
it, it is reallotted.

CHIEF CQILIISSIONER WATKINS: Suppose they po on
using 1f‘heneration after generation, is i1t reallotted
then?

THE WITHESS: It is anot reallotted because the
lpond is thought of as ‘being hoid in trust by what we

might call a primitive corporation.

The=e c¢lans onevate as corporations and they hold
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this land and the caremories related to the growp for the
benefit of futuré generations.

This is passed down through the female line.

Tho land is allotted, shall we say, to the daughter.
Her husband cultlvates 1t%br her, -

If she does not have a husbanrd, her brothers
cultivate it for her.
) Two attempts were made to allot land in this area
tokndividuals in the general govermment allotting in 1890 and
1907, X thinkk, The trouble was that the Goverrment tried
to allot it to men and, therefore, did complete violence
to all lopi rules about how land shou1+e handled.

CHEEF COLMIISSIONRER WATEINS: XIf they had allotted
it to women, it nmight have worked?

THE WITNESS: Xt nmight have worked, yes. At least,

" 4t would have worked better.

CHIEF COIRIISSIONER VATEKINS: Have you studied the
New York Indians?
THE VITNESS: I know a little bit about them.
CHIEF COMIISSIONER WATRINS: They haq some sort
of arrangement there‘where the mother controls.

THE WITNESS: That is right, they had the same

sort of natrilineal clans among tho Iroquoils,

MM, BOYDEN: WMay it plc™so the Tommlssion, X

think it would be helpful at this point,because of the matuve

=
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of the questionz, io let me nake one obscrvation.
This actica was coamencod -~ woll, at the time
ty;s particular action was cammenced; BDoctet 196, all of
the villapges were orgzanizaed imto a groun upder the Ro=
organization Act, and g0 thig =-
CHIEF COMMISSICNER WATRKINS: You mean the Wheeler-
Howard Act? L
‘MR, BOYDEN: That is correct. That is also referred
to ag the Indian Moorganization Act.
CHICF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: I had the lmpression
these Indians out there were too independent to be organized.
3R. DBOYDEN: Well, they ovganized.
Vo comnenced this action for the Hopi Tribe as:
| the Indian Reorganization Act for imcowporation, suing on
its own . bohalf aad ras & represontative of the Hopi Imdians

and the villages of Firat desa, - (consolidatoed Viliages of

{ Walpi, Shitchﬁmovi and Tewa), Highongnovi, Shipaulavi,

Shungopovi, Uraiii, Eyalmtsmovi, Baknbi? Hotovilla and
Moencopi.

I wantod tho Commissica o kacw that each one
of those villages were represented :in a representative
cnpacity as provided by the stztuie.

THE WITNESE: If I cam zo furthor, I haven!t

f inishod answoring your cuestion as yei, whea the scheols

wore set up and after thoy wexe onerating in the 139%&&mmm
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and éfter 190G, when the split occurred, you had missionaries
coning back to this area and a number of Eqpis becoming
- Chrigtian, moving down off the Hesa and did have difficulty
) then because with the encouragement of the agents and the
nissionaries, those Indians wanted to keep their land but
not porform their ceremonies.
So, fzrom the Hopl standpoint, they were not living
up to the agreenments which thelr ancestors haé made when
they came in. _
And 5o there was a good deal of difficulty at
that time since 1900 with regard to maintéining control over
land that in effect helonged to the clan but which under
T -white rules might be considered to be owned by the man who
cultivated it. '
So there was a good deal of dispute regarding
the land which went on from that standpoint.
CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATEINS: They acted very much
like white people ln that respect. :
THE WITNESS: Yes. o %
" By lix. Littell:
Q@ Dr. Epgan, the Hopis are, as you explained yester;
e | dy, fundamentally fArmers, in fact some of them are probably
some of the best dryland farmers in the world, I imagine,

from the records, and the farming fumction or way of life

is bulit irto thelr ceremonlals, is Lt not?
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A It is, yes.

Q But grazing was not. How do you account for
this,if I an correct in sayiag so?

A Well, grazing -- the Hopi are comscrxvative
Indians. Sheoep having been adapted into the Hopi oconomy
to a considerable extent. Cattle were not, particularly.

The main dAifficulty is that cattle and sheep corpote for

water and they also, cattle and sheep, may get into the
gields and eat the corn, beans, md the crops. This has
always been & serious netter with the Hopli and that led
to, as far as possible, sheep and cattle being pushed out-
side the agricultural area or grazed in aress irv which
there weare mot agricultural, there weme not fialds, or there
ﬁere not very many fields, or insisting thn£ they be watched,
All I can say is that the Hopl wers perfectly
willing to have as nany sheep and they liked as many sheep
as Navajo or white peonle do.
Thexe ijust isn®t enough water om the reservation
to support theq, and cattle even less.

They wen't let the springs that supply the people,,
theywon?t let horses, cattle or cheep drizk from those springs.
Q Is there anykther.reason why catile or sheen-
grazing is a0t built into the ceremonials? Isn't it because

they arrived muck later in the Hopl picturo?

1
A That 1o vertis so, sure. They didu?t arrive until
SRP001663
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period, the material period in 1345 and 1849,
_ lere they extensive cattlemen and grazers in
1846 and 18497
‘-_—‘_—_.__—'—-—..,
A They weze not. They wergnoti for the simple reason
T —————

that it was toc risky to have any cattle. They did not
survive under the margins of the Hopl area., This was the
period of the Navajo wars and thoy were the most vulnerable
aspects of Hopl subsistence.
They even came in and took thelr f£iolds close
to the villapas ip some cases.
Q Doctor, whatever be the cause, the fact is, and
“/ this we will deal with separately, whatever be the cause,
the fact is they were not grazers in 1846 or 1849 to any great 1
extent?
A With the sheep, as many shaop 4s they could raise.
CHIEF COREMISSIONER VATRKINS: Vhat was the limitation?
You maid"as many as thoy could raise.”
THE WITNESS: The limitation was water, forage,
and the fact that they used them for subsistence.
As hunting territories were reduced by encroach-
ment, this was their only source of meat.
Let me clarify what I said about meat.
The reference to meat as a relish, that is true.

That 1s the way linquistically they szated it, but they like

mat as well as we do and they will eat it on any

ococaslon,
e e SRP001664
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Q No, Colton doos. I anm sorry.
"Iidving in thke midst of Navajo country, the lopil
™ never heard that a confirmation of their title was necessary.
- Living in the midst of the Navajo country" and this is Coitpn

wxiting, "the llopl never heard that a confirmation of their
——-_-_____.._-——-“' . .
title was necsssary nor had they any momey to make the claim.

'Therefowe, they had no legal tzmure to their land until the

Gxecutive Urder of Precident Arthur in 1882 set aside

2,472,320 acres or 38G0 square miles ag the Moqui Indian

Raservation. This wns set aside out of the public lands

—

of the United States for the Hopl and any other Indians ths

Government might wish to place thercon." ' L

Do you agree with this paragraph of Dr. Colton's - %

that the Hopis were living in the midst of Navajo territory? é

A | What date is he referring to? They certainly | g
were at the time he wrote that, 1939. % o

Q Then you think that this comment —~-

A If you will read further; I quoted from this.
He says, "From £ll historic evidence it seems tha; the Navajos .
entered Arizona in the last ﬁalf of the eighteénth century
but thelr grazing area did not conflict with the Hopl grazing

) and hunting arecs until 1840 ox ?50,"

Then he poes on to detall the accounts of the

round-up and the reservation in‘1868 and the attempis to et

the Navajo off, to vemove trespassing Navajo.

. SRP001665
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Barlier he says, "Whsn the wastward extension %
- of the Navajo Rocervation was establishod in 1884 for NMavajo
| Indiane no menticn was made of the Hopl who have been usiag ;
cortain lands for several hundred years.," - | |
EitkexlDr, Colton, comtradicts himself ox he is
veferxzing thgze to the gituation in 1939.
Q Go zhead and read the next line, Dr. Eggan, or

shill I read 1t?.

A You had better read it because I don't think it
is on mine2. _
143 "Although legally the Hopis have no right to be
f'ij) T at Moenctpi ag the Roservation was set aside fa tha;o'alone._ f é
yet long continued use ¢f the land should give them title. - B g
in settling the Navajo-Hopl boundary moral ns well as legal %
. questions must be censidered.”
A It sounds all right.
Q Kow, without reading it at length, page 4 01—
the mﬁin repbrt, he refers to the . incident which you
referrad to in your tastimony yesterday that im 1889, the
Secratary 9! tha Intorior got the Army to sond some armed
forces out there._
Colton says "A party was sent out but the weather
was bad and thav enly removed those Navajos who hed recently
encronchad on the Mogqui and werned thoso wio had been living

there a year not to impose on the Yoquis."
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Is this the source of your s?itement vesterduy
that the army stopped because of -bad weather?

A I didr®t say the army stopped because of bad

_weather.

Q Winter weather, I meant.
A In other documents, it is clear that the army
came out there in November. They were guided by Chee Dodge,

a Navajo,who asked the Colonsl in charge not to remove the

Navajo at this time bscause they would suffer bacause -winter

was coming on, they would have to build other habitations.

Ho said, "Can't they walt until spring?" Of course, <

by spring they bad forgotten all about it.

Q Dr, Eggan, did you read the Army reports behind
this inci2ant? Do you know or don’t you know that the army
officers recoﬁmended against removal because the Navajos= had
been there so long?

_HR. BOYDEN: No, other evidence does nét show that.

THE WIINESS: The evidence does not show that,

I read the Army Reports. WVhat they did was divert
themselves to sponding most of their time trying to put
Hopi children in school.

The Secretary of the Interior, when asked about it
later on, "Shall we do some more?" said, "No, I just wanted
to see whas the Department of War would do."

CHIER COMIYSS IONER WATKINS: Whenpou said Hopi

SRP001667
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atricker from the record.

CHIEF COMMISS IONER WATKINS: As it happens, you
cannot take it out of 6ur minds even 1f you strike it from
the record.

By Mr. Littellz' '

/ Q@ Ve are not before a jury.

Do you gdissent from h;s statement in any way or
agree with it? |

A  BHis statement is correct in that the Hopi had

no Jurisdiction even over their own Executive Order’neaerid-l' 

tion at that time and they could not make any decisions about S

17;:3 o a reservation., It had not been ratified by COngress until

Just a few ‘years ago.

At that tiwe, they had no legal authority except
by def#ult.

Q Yould you agree with this statement on page 7!

"The Hopis have in the past made use of the land
within forty or fifty miles of their villages for hunting,
grazing, agriculture and for wood supplies. From time to
time they visited religious shrines well cutside that area."

) A I think that fits in withk my testimony.
Could I interrupt just ome nminute?
I would like to clear up one point with regard to

land which, when you asked me about land ox whenkon asked

ne ahout land, ¥ ueglected; that is,” in addition to olanSRPO01668
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land there is individually-owned land. The areas which

are not allooated for clan lands can be cultivated by any

individual. As long as he and his family cultivate that,

-that can go down to the childreﬁ. This can go out to any

distar.ce.

These lands in general are - less desirable land

than those closer to the village that are - . watered.

But &ou do have fﬁat addition.

"CﬁIEF COMEISSIONER ﬁﬂTKIRBz-AYbu mean to say in
effect, ﬁs long as fhey use fhem they can keep on uéigé?‘
them in the family but if they should move any or abandon
them they could not pass that title .to anyone else? 7 |

" . THE VITNESS: That is right. If ome of thesé

areas is abindoned outsidé of the clan lands, anyohé élse-

could come aloang and start cultivating them.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER HATKIES; You say there is an

_exception for clan lands?

THE WITNESS: Clan lands cammot be, evenm if all of
the clan lands are not utilized, no onefelée can take them
without perm;ssion. '

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKIRS: Of the clan?

, THE WITNESS: Of the clan, that is correct.
By Mr. Littell:

I

Q Ono wmore quotation from page 12 of the full report,

Exhibit 15-A, whioch I will offer in a moment.
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"It is wall to romember that the Hopl Tribe
exists only in the eyes of the Indiesn Bureau and the
general public. The Hopis themselves do not think
of themselves in terms of a tribe. They Qwagllegiance
only to the village in which they live and with a
couple of exceptions the villapges are independent of
one another as certain Rio Grande pueblos like Santo
Domingo, Zia, Cochitl and Acoma, which axre bound
together by lanpuage and culture. There is no political

unity. It is, ‘therefore, necessary to deal with each -

village separately, Vialpi, Hano, Mishnonovi, Shipaulovi,.

Shungopovi, Oraibi, Hotevilla, Bakabi, and loenkopi.

The Indiaa Bureau after sixty years of struggle is Juaf __ 

learning this fact., This means that as far as land use

is concerned additions to District Six,” which is the

land management district embraced around, which embraces the

"additions to District Sixz should be considered not only -
as éne - lump afea it as additions to the grezing lands
of each village or mesa; as, first Mesa, Second Mesa,
Third Hesa."

Do yoﬁ agree with that statement?
A No, I do not agree with mick of that statement.

The Hopl, as a cultural and linquistic unit are a

tribe, Thoy do not bappen to have a political organization,

SRP001670
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Just as the Navajo do not have an overall political organiza-
tion.

The Hoii do have an over-all religious orgniization
and Shungopovi is the mother village recognized in supreme
religious matters by the Hopi group.

In the past, there have been conflicts between
villages but the fact that all of these villages have united
in this or fhe majorlty of them have united under the
reorganization under the Wheeler-Howard Act which the Navajo
have not dome, they have a Tribal Gouncil representing the
villages on aren--vide basis, and on the guezstion of lands
anﬂ their desire to have their own territory, 'Y think. they
are all united on that.

Q Now, Dr. Eggan, this report --

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Just a moment before
you leave that. There is a question in my mind about the
organization.

You mention both the Navajos and the Hopis not

having a political organizatica. & assume you.chot wnean

in modern times, because you just mentioned the Wheeler-

Howard Act in the Hopl territory and they domn’t have the
Wheeler-Howard Aot in the Navajo but they do have a tribal
organ:l.zat:l.on .

THE WITNESS: The Navajo have a tribal organization

which was set up soparately from the Wheeler-Boward Aot.
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guestion even on cross~exanination, with the greatest
latitude.

Now he is starting to argue a question of principle.
Here a man is testifying 111‘1956 about claims that thay had
before them. No attempt to.tie it in. He is asking him
whether it is in his opinion gquestion of title. B has
mswered once. He said that :I.e; the Commission’s job.

KR. LITTELL: The counsel?s objection is well
taken. I withdraw the question.

By Mr. Littell:

Q Hﬁy I read one more paragraph to you and ask if

you agree with 1t.or dissent from it? This is on the next
succeeding page, 9446 of the Committee Report.

“TEE‘Qxaggerated claims of the Hopis for territory

are explained by desire to own their holy places, tﬁeir

e,

shrines. These were the holy places of groups of Hopis

—

bofcre 1320C. The orthodox Hopl now wish control thom.

These shrines are found from Navajo Mountain to the

‘ Iittle Colorado and from the Sa ' n‘ to

the Luakachukas. In solving the land question it might

be possible to satisfy the older Hopi generation by

giving to the Hopl title to these skrines which are small
areas ahout ton feat by tem feet whgrever they are found in
national forest, public domain or Indian reservations.

It would be a movemont something liks the Zionisi novement
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in Palestine. It is the desire also felt by Christians,
~ the desire which caused the crusades. Christians also
- with to see their holy places omt of alien hands.” %
A That suggested they still visit them,does 1t-not? %
Q Yosa. é
A Amd X think}haf is a fair statement as to where
thei; shrines are and their relationship to them. They dont't S
just take a helicopter to the shrine, however. The area i
in between is important to them, too. §
I have suggested they do other things in between. %
They gather herpn and plants the same way the Havajo do. %
f:> They may bunt over that territory. They may bring %
back wood ox they may being baok cexemonial objects. %
I think that is otherwise a fine statement. '
) MR, LITTELL: Thank you, Dr. Eggan.
Is it too early to take a few minutes' recess?
CHIEF COAMMISSIONER WATEINS: Ve will take a fifteen
minute recess.
(Thereurvon, 3 recess was taken for fifteen
nimites.)
) ' CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: You may proceed.

MR, LITTELL: No further cross-examination.
MR. BOYDEN: Could X ask cne cuestion, just ona
short question here?

CHIEF COMIISSIONER WATKINS: Are you sure it is
SRP001673
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going to be a short one?
MR. BOYDEN: Yes.
5:3 ' Dr. Eggan, during the year 1848 and prior thereto, |
were the Hopli Indians an identifiable group of Indians ; 2
59 tyat when you spolke of the Hopis there was no question E%
about what Indiang you were referring to nor what it included? %
THE WITNESS: They were.
MR. BOYDEN: That is all.
By Mr. Rochow:
Q Dr. Eggan, in the course of this hearing, reference
has been made on two or three occasions to District Six.
I don't think that thg record shows very clearly Just,what i
i1s meant by District Six, Can you tell us? : L

e T B e

A I can tell you, I think, briefly.

District Six was one of the eightoen grazing

distriots which was set up under the Indian Reoxrganization
Act commonly known as the Wheeler-Howard Act in the ;ate i
thirties, aitex about 1936, *27, 1938. They were set up

to control grazing, to regulate gxraziag, to reduce the

herds of sheep which in many areas were too numerous for

the ¢arrying capacity of the range, and these were pet up

‘-) simply as administrative districts.

Now, it happened that one of these districts,

Just by‘ohance, included the area which the lopis at that

time, 1935, were occupying 2nd using and around which wore

SRP001674
£r



i18

7409

other districtes which were largely occupiled by Navajos
who were at that time both on the Hopl Reservation and
on their own Reservation.

These districts -~ Mr. Collier, who was then
Commisgsioner of Indian Affairs, repeatsdly assured the Hopis
that District Six was not a reservation district but was put up
siuply for grazing, for the regulation of grazing and forx
that only. But gradually during the late thirties, this
became more and more @ de facto reservation.

During the war, the Department of the Interior, or
vght after the war, attempted to make district six by adnin:l.-
strative order the Hopi Roservation. This was not done
because, I think, counsel for the Department of ihe Interior
said that this was illegal, that oniy Congress could make any
changes in regervation boundaries. !

Bﬁt this area has continued today as a sort of de
facto reservation pending the clarification of who owns the
Executive Order Reservation which is to be decided by the
Federal court.

The area is not shown on this map but it roughly
zuns from the general vicinity of Keams Canyon to the
southern area of Black Mesa and around in this general area,
about the heart of this area, but with otlor districts,

grezing districte on the meargins.

These have boen rendjlusted one or tro times
SRP001675
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bocause some Hopis were outside of District Siz and
some Navajos were inside of it, and there is a long set
~ of documents on this which wore introduced im the other
. trial which I think have not been introduced here.
Q When you sald and poinfed with your finger. "this
general aroa,ﬁ you were indicating most of the soutbern half
of the Hopl Executive Order Reservation, is that right? |
A I think in Dzr. Ellis? report, I think I saw a
map in thero of District Six. I can only roughly draw it ! f
on‘this mAp. é
Y. | I
Q Is that tho goneral area, tho second half of the
Executive Order Hopi Reservation? %

€ A

irregular area, heart-shaped area.

It is the south, the central south. Sort of an 5

Q That gives us ﬁ general idea of what you mean.
MR. LITTELL: For coumnsel?s information, we have

extonsive map sxhibits : in Eealing v. Jones. Ve have that

bt S ey e R S T g ke

shown in 511-A in this case.
MR. ROCHOW: That is the outline in yellow?
HR. LITTELL: I withdraw the last statement abeut
511-A., That is the area we contond for but we will get
2_) at least one of those maps from Hoaling v. Jomes io clarify
this wint.
MR. BOYDEN: It is in Fipgure 2 of Dr. Ellis? report,

page 109.
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800 A. D. and 1300 cccupled p larger aven thaz at
present, un azea bounded on the west by the Little
Colorado, Colorade, and Sam Juan Rivers, oa the esst

by & line south from Monunent Valley, west of the )
Chinle Wesh to the ILittle Colorado. With thke escepti&n
of Hbenéopi, 21l of the remniring pueblos are within the
Executive Order Esservation."

Doesn?t this surmarized statement of Colton indicate
that the area occupied by them in 1848 wac considerably less
than the area occupied by them hundred fifty years
earlier, say. 13007 That is Pive hundved fif¢{y yoars earlier.
(:D \ A %e spys they cccupled 2 larger nrea than at prosont

;nd understanding.aocupiad the wﬁ§ we have defZimed 1t, it
seons to mo that his statoment of their occcupation at this
tine and the gtatoment that I have made here do not vary very
groatly. And the statement of'theiw occupation at 1848 1is
comparable to this. 5

Q You thiak the area thay occupled in 1848 is
comparable to what?

A To the statoront of Dr. Colton for 1300.

) Q For 1300 A. D. Vell, they don't occupy that large -

an aren now, do. they?

A In some placez in soms re3pccts it is probably even
larpger if youv take the full extent of thedr shrines.

COMUISSTONER SCOTT: How do you define the word

SRP001677
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"occupy," Mr. Rochow, as you pose your Grestion? ' i

HR. ROCHOW: As I use the term "occupy," I should .
probably say "use and ocoupy" as we use it in these Indian
cases, |

0f com'ae,‘:l.n or &r to have good claim, the Hopi '
have to exclusively use and ococupy an area from time -~
immemorial or at least from some reasonable lengi:h of tinme
isfore 1848 vhen we obtained sovereignty over this area.

By Mx. Rochow:

Q When you testified on direct'exan:lnation, you
indicated that it was you:; cpinion that the area exclna:l.ve—
1y used and occupied by the Hopi in 1848 was the area in
Colox o*opi Exhibit A, except that the line was drawn
Mch would cut o:tf the eastern half of tha orange, green, and o
purple,east of the Executive Order Reservation,that is a |
line \‘ia‘s drawn from the mouth of Chixnie Wash on the north
éouth to the mouth ofihe Zuni River which is whore X have
indicatod my pointer now. _

In other - words, the line would go Just about
between the "e" and the "a" which is indicated as the eastern
area on this exhibit. Is that right?

A That is correct.

Q In other words, :the area that you would aseoribe
to the Hopl as their exclusive ared of use and occupancy

in 1848 apd for some reasonable time before that wuld he the

. _ SRP001678
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area west ol thai nceth and south 1line?

A Yes.

Q Indicated in color on Hopi Exhibit A. Is that
right, Doctox?

A That 1z correct.

COMMISSIONER SCOTT: Vher yom say that, Déctor,
you aye thinkipg of two diffevent things? You are thinking
of the word "oocupy" and the woxrd "use": is that right?

TEE WITNESS: Yem, siv. They dviocusly were not
living on every square mile of that arees but they were, X
think, using essentially that area,.

COMMISSYICRER SCOIT: Then with reference to the
definition of the word "ume" for your purposes, do you
include area for travel purpo:es;

TEE WITNESS: I think travel purposes wore incident-
a8l to the uae; ¥ would thirnk of "use™ as cccurring in part
during travel but they had to travel to most of these ereas
to use the varioup resources and in areas whicﬁ, in effect,

& particular area thet had ne resource within this, they
eght travql acrose 1t, but they might not make any use of it.

CHXEF COMMISSTONER WATKINS: RExcept te travel over?

THE VITYESS: Well, - -

COEM IS ICWER SCOTT: They used it fml', traveling
purposes?

THE WITHESS:-- you micht have a barren salt flatrpoiero

i
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for example, on which nothing grew. They might truvel
across 1t ox they might travel arcund it. It was within
theiy territory.

It, by itself, might have no particular significance
except perhaps for such thinés. -

But, by and large, they thought of this as their
territory and the resources on it were theirs and‘were glven
to thqn and these were tha resources that they used, for the
various purposes I described. . |

By ¥Mr. Rochow:

Q As you use the term "occupy," Dr. Eggan, how do
you understand it? In other words, how are you using the
term "occupy"?

A YPor this particular area, I think of occupatiom as

o

living within the area, . having a conception of the boundaries

of the area,knowledge of the produots within that area,

g ——— e

a utilization of these produots continuously or periodically

as the case may be, and n resentment of trespass by other

COMMISS IONER SCOTT: Doas that include the use of

tha shrines?

THE WITRESS: That includes the use of the shrines,

yes, sir.

CONISSIONER SCOTT: And the areas used to hunt
T —

-

eagles?..
' SRP001680
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THE WITNESS: That is correct, sir.

By Hr. Rochow:
Q Are you familiar with the various shrine locations
that are shown upon Hopl Exhibits 68 and 687
A  Generally, from this map and from reading an8 from
talkipg with Hopi. But I have only visited very fow.

' | Th:l.at whole area 1s a matter which is sacred to
the Hopi and they don't talk very much to outsiders about it.
So that Hopis omn give you much more information about this
than I can. But I will txy to answer your questions,sir.

Q@  Are you aware of places that aré rogarded by other
Indians, éﬁvndo or Apaché or Havasupai or anycther ¥ndiens .

other than Hopi, who ragard places within ihis area ocutlined

in c¢olor upon Hopl Exhibit A as sicred places of thoirs?

A There are a number. I bhave scen soms of the Navajo

oxhibits. There are a number of sacred places that the

Navajo have in this area. I am pot awsre that the Apache

M——

have built some. Therg may be some. I am not aware of any
sacroed places of the Havesupai in this regicn.

Q If the Navejo go to places within the area that you
have outlined as the ahorigimal territory of the Hopl before
1848 and go thore repgularly to deposit eagle feathers or
tc worship in some othor w2y, accordi;g © Favajo custonm,
wouldn't.the Navajo cousider that to be a sacred place of

theirs and within their area just as much s tho Hopi weulde
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Order Reservation is two and a half million acres, would

~ you say the area outside would be at least twand a half
mllion aores? |
A It looks like it would be a little bit more than
that.
Q Porhaps three million acfaa in round figures?
A Yan.
Q So the entire area, you would advooate as the
aboriginal térutory for the Hopi, would be roughly ‘.bout
five and a half million acres, is that right?
A _.That is right, roughly.
@ Q You ax not being held to a hard and fast estimate,
| Just your judgment from looking at Exhibit A.
That is a- lot‘ of acreage fora small group of
people, although2500 is a fair number, to occupy.
Now, EE_"" what documents or upon what ev:lggnce
do you rely in concj.uding that this area was exclusively
us:d and occupied by theHopi in 18487 It might be documentary
evidence, it might be anyother kind of evidence. -
Can you tell us, Dr. Eggan?
'v.) / - A For the peoriod 1_848, I rely upon the maps which

show the Hopi in this areaand no other groupgin this area.

\ —-—

I rely upon the statemenis just before this period

Fat his ournﬁw I roly upon the

gtatoment of the various Individuals, the various Government
” SRP0016
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the 1850%s traveled through thisarea either along the Little

| Colorado River or through the area or argund it, Ives, Sit-
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army officers, Govermment surveyors, and so on, who in

reaves, Surgeon Ton Brock, who traveled in this région.
Koneof them repoxrts other Indiams occupyiqg this
area and all of them put the Hopi Indiams in this region.

Q Don't all of those documents to which you have just
?eferred talk about meeting Hopis on the various Mesas in
their villages?

A Sometimes they met them in Zuni, sometimes they.
uet'thegfin the BHavasupal villages, sometimes they met them
on the trails, sometinmes they met them in the Moencopi area; %
sometines they mot them in the east, Ip the ﬁiddlaAlssoﬁs. L
for example, a grouﬁ of Hopis went over to Fort Defiance
to got supplies from ‘the first agent, including the Chief
of Walpi. They knew all of that area. f

| One day back from there, theoy were ambushed and
all except two or three killedly the Kavajo. But they
traveled around. There 1is documehtnry eviden;e of their
traveling around, all through this region.

Certainly if you wgnt to the Hopl villages, you
always found some -there bacause that was theirAhomeland.

Q But do these documents spell out_or point out

in any way at all specific areas or overall that this area

was occupied by the Hopi; whem I say "occupied" I mean

SRP001683
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exclusively used and occupled.

~ A They doa®t, llest of them don't come out and say

e "4t in that fashion, but they say it botk by inference and
by exclusion. ‘_’I'hey— é)ut no one else in this area and they
put the Hopi in thiE} area.

Q Don't they generally just say they met a Hopi here
or they met two Hopis there, or perhaps berding sheoen or
doi.ﬁg gomething like that? |

A As you point out, sir, this is a large area and
fraveling over cortainn trails you might or micht not meet
Hopi, ' ?{mey might be just over tho next hillside, It is

o j@ . just as easy to go 'l:brough.. this country and not see Bopi
= as it 18 to go, if you were out in the ficlds and out herding,
if you were to go through Navegjo country, and not see Wavajo.

Q So far a3 the documernts go that you have referred

to, Dr. Egran, the only nlace they actually repert Hopi

liiing wore on the First, Second, ané Third Mesas, waren't

they? -

A That is correct, except Hoencopl and ¢xcept for a

—

Pt 1ittle lator onm sone of the areas outside the Mesa region.

——

D - Qq None &f %ho documents reforsyed to encountering Hopi

vhc were pickine pifon nuté,_, do they? -

A ¥ don?t thisk they roforyed 4o then, but I would
guarantee that every veax theve were pinon muts the Hopi

v out nilcking theu,
nexe T SRP001684
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anthropologists and ethnologists is wvhat you are referring
to? | ‘
A Yes, sir.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: Would the writings
themselves of the various travelers become part of the
tradition, establish a tradition?

THE WITNESS: In some cases.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER WATKINS: That would apply to any

of the Indian tribes, Navajos, Hopis, or any of these other

tribes that are petitionmers in this comsolidated hearing,

five or six of them altogether?
THE WITNESS: I I understand your question, that
is correct.
By lir. Rochow:
Q How far out from the villages, Dr. Egpan, do the
olan aéricultural lands extend? |
A 'I'_he clan agricultural Alénds are"mainly n the

—
various washes vhich run along beside the villages. The

— —_

are within a few miies of the village penerally.

—

Q When you say "few miles,” what do you mean, two or
three, four or six, or vhat?

A They run certainly within ten miles and in some

cages shorter. Ome and iten miles would cover most of thenm.

—

1] It depends on the nature of the area around the

village, is that right?

SRP001685
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A Yes, sir.

Q Where do  the individually owned or those lands
»zfaa used exclusively by certain families extend?
- A Individually owned mes exztend a considerable
distance farther away and some offthem are cultivated quite
a distance away. AYou take in Moencopl, forty or fifty miles
avay. The Hopl in recent years have beeﬁ expanding out
in all directions where they could find new land vhich they
could cultivate with modernreqﬁipment.

Q Now, onc of the exhibits submitted intehalf of
the Hopi is a lizst of wild food products that the Hopld ate
back one hundred years ago or more, 1848 and to some sxtenf,
I suppose, stiil use in tleiyr way of life.

That list of food products, I thinlk, was prepared
by Whiting, was 1t? |

A  Originally it was prepared by flfred Vhiting, yes,
sir.

Q Is that the fellow who is presently at Dartmouth?

A I think he is at Dartmouth. He was recently. At
that time, he was on the staff of the Huseug of Northern
Arizona.
~k:) - Q I think he was the fellow .vho testified last

April in the liavasupai case across the hall,

A That 1is right-

Q Just vwhere in this area that you have ascribed

SRP001686
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to the Hopi, did they gather these various Liinds of food
products? For ezample, where did they go for . pinidn nuts?

) A For pinon muts, they went mainly on Black Mesa,

the area in the northeEt corner of the Executive Order Reser-
vatior and in the northern section apnd eastern seétion. That
whecle area of Black llesa is an area of pinon junipex. 

As you Itnow, piibn muts, the harvest is irregular.
You may have several years with nothing worth gathering,
then you will have a,bumrer crop. They also gathered them in
some areas out in the west, and in the eust in the muthern
porticn of Black llesa, Antelope Mesa, Roberts Mesa, and those

Mesas between therc and Cteamboat Canyon.

Q Up in this porthern " area around Black Mesa, weren't
Paiutes also ‘in that area?

A Ho,sir; not to nmy knowlédge, unless you are think-
ing of a different Black llesa than I am.

My Black Hesa is this area of high table land here

thich slopes off to the south, the headwaters of these streams.

Q Do you know where these Palutes were at this time,
I mean about 18487 |

A The Pniute territory is up in this region onthe
other side of the Colorado. They came across for trade,
they came acrogs for raiding. You bave the reference to the
sacking of Moencopi which you read. By and larpe, the Paitues

had relatively little to do with this region. I an not

SRP001687
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A yes. I made sone éffort along those directions.

As far as my effort goes, it corresponds to

: ﬁZQ Whiting's account but it is pot mearly so complete.

COIMMISSIONER SCOTT: What do you mean by that,
Doctor?

THE WITNESS: where I have evidence of this kind,
it corresponds with Dr. Vhiting's fuller account as represent-
ed in this.

COMMISSIORER SCOTT: Then you do mean that
Exhibit 8 is not to reflect areas which Dr. Vhiting, from
hig investigation at least, believes are or were used in

1::3 aboriginal times, in 1848, or prior thereto?
| THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER SCOTT: I wanted to get that because,
of course, unless it would relate to the time of 1848 or
prior thereto, it would have no legal significance in this
proceeding.

THE WITNESS: That is true. 1y testimony yesterday,

I thipk, was to the effect that in times earlier than 1900,

the Hopl &?ended to a far greater cztent than they do today

on wild plant food and that in the famine period particularly

they were almost ontirely dependent on plant foods plus what-
ever animal food and their utilization of these today is

only a small part of what it was a hundred years ago.

. COMIISS IONEE SCOTT: - 0f course, you can’t testify

SRP001688
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for Dr. Jhiting, but this was included -~

THEE WITNESS: Dr. Whiting, I may add, followed the
sane procedure that lMr. Littell outlined. He got knowledge-
able informants. He took them out with him to these
various areas and they showed him where they collected them,
and he collected them himself, and made a botanical identifi-
cation. In his account he has a good deal of evidence, a
number of statements as to traditional uses of them.

COMMISSIONER SCOIT: There is nothing independent
of your testimony, as I see it, in Exhibit 3 which would
place these descriptions as being of areas in use as of
1848 or prior thereto. Am I right in that?

THE WITNESS: It night vary with different plants,
different objects.

MR. BOYDEN: It might be helpful to the Commission
it 1 guggestéd here Exhibit 47 whioh tells a little about
the ceremonies with these plants. Exhibit 48 is "The Hopi
and His Relation to Their Plant Environment," which was
written in 1947.

There is.Exhibit 49, "Eanvironmental Interrel#tions
in Arizona," that - has some reflection on the Hopi plants
use and so foxth.

So all of those put together seem to indicate a
repgularity of use. That is what we were relying on to

support the testimony of this witness.

’ .. SRP001689
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COMMISSIONER SCOTT: The point I was trying to get
at, though, is that except for the testimony of. Dr. Egganlbn
sgg cross—examnination here, there would seem to be nothing else
in the record to establish the date to which these descrip-
tions in Exhibit Number 3 referred, as you state.
THE WITNESS: Therc is, sir, in Plaintiff*s Exhibit
48 done by Walter Hough, who was under the United States
National lluseun, his paper on the Hopi relations with their
plant environment. In the American Anthropologist, 1947,
on page 2, he has a statement 1 think which is relevant. He
. saysy "It is true that the Hopl extend their environment
‘:: by long journeys for various substances. Every berry patch
| for many miles around is known and visited; o~ jburney of two
hundred miles or so for salt from the Grand Canyon, wild
tobacco from the Little Colorado, sacred . water from Clear
Creelr, pine boughs from San Francisco Mountain, the home of
the snow, is thought of little moment. To my .knowledge,
an Oruibi man made a continuous run of 1G0 miles as bearer
of a note and ansvwer. The knowledge of the resources of

a vast territory possessed by the Hopi is remarkable and

. - the general familiarity with the names and uses of plants
G'Q;ﬁ and animalg is surprising. Iven small children were able
to supply the names, corroborated later by adults."

His primary interest was in ethmobotany, he

did a great deal of vork om the Hopi,

SRP001690
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MR. BOYDEN: Read the next paragraph, too.
CHIZF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: May I ask a question

on that point?

Do you believe that statewment?

THE WITHNESS: Which statement?

CHIET COIRBIZISSIONER VATKINS : The one you just read.

THE WITNESS: I do, sir.

CHIEF COMMISSIONER VATKINS: A Hopi ran one hundred
sixty miles continmuously?

THE. WITNESS: I think the reference he has is a Hopi
wko was sent 53 an army officer either to Fort Defiance

or to Zuni and ' came back again with the mswer in time

which was brief enough so thath® had to run most of the way.
I don® say he ran every step.
CHILF COMMISSIONER WATEKINS: I got the inpfession
when you read it that he ram all the*:i.me.
THE WITNESS: Not a rapid run but cven when I was
" eut there young Hopi were out, would be taken out in an
automébile twventy miles and just run back for traininsz. I
hﬁﬁe seen that myself.
Then in some of the early marathons in this
'-%;9 countyy there were quite 5 few Hopi winners in the carly
part of the nineteenth century. _
CHIECF COMMISSIONIR WATKINS: Do you think they ran

in the Boston marathon?
SRP061691
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THE VITNESS: In the Boston Marathon.

COMMISSIONER SCOTT: lMay I ask Mr. Boyden at this
point whether or not he intends to have additional testimony
concerning Number 3 to establish more clearly the dates?

LR. BOYDEN: The testimony, I think, that is already
in the record, if I may refer to it, the next paragraph where
Dr. Eggan stopped reading says: *The anqient Hopi" —-

MR, LITTELL: What page?

MR, BOYbEN: Page 3 of Exhibit 48:

"The ancient Hopl were apparently in no} wise
inferior to their descendants in these matters,as was
proven by the excavations undertaken by our ﬁarty last
summer.

"In the-remains of any ancient culture, stope and
bone relics stand as surviving a multitude of other
articles which have perished.”

And so forth, and goes into this a little bit further.

I rnotice there aré several places in here that
I think we show the use of the Hopi plants clearly from
archaeological excavations and so forth, are the same‘as
they are using at ihia time.

COMMISSIONER SCOTT: The point I am making, Ir.
Boyden, is whether or not the Commission may rely for the
dating of the material in Exhibit Number 3 as being of 1848

or prior thereto on any other evidence than that given on
SRP001692
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